HEALTH INSURANCE

NOTICE OF 10T™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE of shorter duration is hereby given that the Tenth Annual General Meeting of
the members of Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited will be held on
Tuesday, July 31, 2018 at 1615 hrs (IST) at 2, South End Lane (Rajesh Pilot Lane),
Rajesh Pilot Marg, New Delhi — 110011 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

(1) To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements comprising the
Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 along
with Revenue Account (Policyholders’ Account)for the financial year ended
March 31, 2018, Profit & Loss Account (Shareholders’ Account) for the financial
year ended March 31, 2018, Receipts & Payments Account(Cash Flow
Statement) for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Management
Report together with Board’s Report and Independent Auditor’s Report thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the audited Financial Statements comprising the Balance
Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2018, Revenue
Account (Policyholders’ Account) for the financial year ended 31st March 2018,
Profit and Loss Account (Shareholders’ Account) for the financial year ended
31st March 2018, Receipts and Payments Account (Cash Flow Statement) for the
financial year ended 31st March 2018, the Management Report together with the
report of the Board of Directors & the Auditors’ thereon be and is hereby
received, considered and adopted.”

2) Re-appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Mohit Talwar (DIN -02394694),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

‘“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Mohit Talwar (DIN - 02394694), who
retires by rotation from the office of director and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

(3) Re-appointment of a Director in place of Mr. John Lorimer (DIN -07138581),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
CIN - U66000DL2008PLC182918
Corporate Office: Block B1/1-2, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044
Tel.: + 91-11-30902000, Fax No.: +91-11-30902010, www.maxbupa.com

Registered Office: Max House, 1 Dr. Jha Marg, Okhla, New Delhi - 110020
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. John Lorimer (DIN - 07138581), who
retires by rotation from the office of director and being eligible, offers himself for

re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

(4) Re-appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Ashish Mehrotra (DIN - 02667356),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Ashish Mehrotra( DIN - 02667356), who
retires by rotation from the office of director and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

(5) Appointment of M/s M.P. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, (ICAI FRN
- 101851W) as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139, 141, 142 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) and re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), IRDAI’s
Regulations and Corporate Governance Guidelines, M/s. M. P. Chitale & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (ICAI FRN - 101851W), Joint Statutory
Auditor of the Company, who being eligible have offered themselves for
appointment, be and is hereby appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditor of the
Company, to hold the office from the conclusion of 10th Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 12th Annual General Meeting of the
Company on such terms & conditions as fixed by the Board of Directors of the
Company and mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors and M/s.
M. P. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, and at a remuneration amounting
to Rs. 14,00,000/- (Rupees Fourteen Lakhs only) (excluding reimbursement of
out of pocket expenses which shall be on actual basis) for carrying out the
Statutory Audit of the Company for the financial year 2018-19 be and is hereby
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rahul Ahuja (Chief Financial Officer), Mr.
Partha Banerjee (Director & Head — Legal, Compliance, Regulatory Affairs) and
Mr. Rajat Sharma (Company Secretary) be and are hereby jointly and/or
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severally authorized on behalf of the Company to take all actions as they may

severally deem expedient, including making necessary filing/intimation, if any,
with the Authorities and do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required

or considered necessary or incidental thereto to give effect to the above
resolution.”

(6) Appointment of M/s Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accounts, New Delhi
(ICAI FRN - 002391C)as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139, 141, 142 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) and re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), IRDAI’s
Regulations and Corporate Governance Guidelines and subject to approval of
Shareholders of the Company, M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants,
New Delhi (ICAI FRN - 002391C), Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company, who
being eligible have offered themselves for appointment, be and is hereby
appointed as the Joint Statutory Auditor of the Company, to hold the office
from the conclusion of 10th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the
11th Annual General Meeting of the Company on such terms & conditions as
fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company and mutually agreed upon
between the Board of Directors and M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP., Chartered
Accountants, and at a remuneration amounting to Rs. 14,00,000/- (Rupees
Fourteen Lakhs only) (excluding reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
which shall be on actual basis) for carrying out the Statutory Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2018-19 be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rahul Ahuja (Chief Financial Officer), Mr.
Partha Banerjee (Director & Head - Legal, Compliance, Regulatory Affairs) and
Mr. Rajat Sharma (Company Secretary) be and are hereby jointly and/or
severally authorized on behalf of the Company to take all actions as they may
severally deem expedient, including making necessary filing/intimation, if any,
with the Authorities and do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required

or considered necessary or incidental thereto to give effect to the above
resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

(7) To Increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61, 64and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
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thereof, for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the

Company, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs.
10,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into
1,00,00,00,000 (One Hundred Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each to Rs.15,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Hundred Crore only) consisting
0f1,50,00,00,000 (One Hundredand Fifty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
(Rupees Ten) each by creation of 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore only) equity shares
of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61, 64
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the existing Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by
substituting the following new Clause V as under:

V. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 15,00,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifteen Hundred Crores Only) divided into 1,50,00,00,000 (One
Hundred and Fifty Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ashish Mehrotra (CEO and Managing
Director), Mr. Rahul Ahuja (Chief Financial Officer), Mr. Partha Banerjee
(Director & Head - Legal, Compliance & Regulatory Affairs) and Mr. Rajat
Sharma (Company Secretary) be and are hereby jointly and/or severally
authorized on behalf of the Company to take all actions as they may severally
deem fit, including making necessary filing/intimation, if any, with the
Authorities and do all such acts deeds and things as may be required or
considered necessary or incidental thereto.”

By order of..the Board of Directors

\
"\

M @’*’-‘E“"/
~/ Rajat Sharma
X ?ﬁ'xpany Secretary
- M. No. FCS7069
Address: Address: B1 / I-2, Mohan Cooperatlve Industrial Area,
Mathura Road, New Delhi: 110044
Email ID: rajat.sharma@maxbupa.com

Dated: July 31, 2018
Place: New Delhi
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Notes:

1. The Company is convening its meeting at shorter notice therefore the
requirement of forty eight hours for submission of proxy form cannot be met
with, hence the Form MGT-11 is not applicable in this case.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 setting out the material facts and reasons in respect of the business
mentioned under item no. 7 is annexed hereto.

3. The statutory registers of the Company along with all the documents referred to
in the Notice and accompanying explanatory statement shall be available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company and at the Venue of the
meeting, during working days of the Company between 10.00 A.M. and 1.00
P.M. except on holidays, up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

4. The Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company, M/s. MAS Services T-34,
2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi — 110020 is handling
Registry work in respect of shares held in electronic/ demat form.

5. As per the requirements of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, corporate
members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the
meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
meeting.

6. The meeting has been convened at a shorter notice. As per the requirements of
Section 101 of the Companies Act 2013 and Secretarial Standard 2, and to
validate the meeting, the consent of at least 95% of the members entitled to vote
is required. The Letter seeking approval of shareholders to convene the Annual
General Meeting at a shorter Notice on July 27, 2018 is attached herewith and
the Members are requested to duly sign and provide the same.

7. A Route Map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the
venue of Annual General Meeting is annexed to the notice.

8. Members/ authorized representatives are requested to bring the duly filled
Attendance slip as annexed to the notice to attend the meeting.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the following
Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned
under Item Nos. 6 of the accompanying Notice:-

1. Item No.7

The Company proposes to increase its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.
10,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into
1,00,00,00,000 (One Hundred Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each to Rs.15,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Hundred Crore only) consisting of
1,50,00,00,000 (One Hundred and Fifty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees
Ten) each by creation of 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore only) equity shares of Rs. 10
(Rupees Ten only) each, in order to meet the capitalization requirements in line
with the business plans of the Company.

The present authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 10,00,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) divided into 1,00,00,00,000 (One Hundred
Crores) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

The present issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs.
9,26,00,00,000 (Rupees Nine Hundred Twenty Six Crores only) divided into
92,60,00,000 (Ninety Two Crores Sixty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten) each

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61,64 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013, item 7 of the notice requires members’ consent
by way of an Ordinary Resolution in the Annual General Meeting. Consequent
upon the increase in authorized capital of the Company, the Memorandum of
Association is to be altered, in order to reflect the said effect. The proposed change
in the Memorandum of Association of the Company has been mentioned in the
respective resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or any other officials of the
Company and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested either
financially or otherwise in the proposed resolution except to the extent of their
shareholding.
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The Board recommends passing of the resolution contained in Item No. 7 as an
Ordinary Resolution.

By oy y“Board of Directors

03% : Aﬁ‘i Rajat Sharma
/Nsh WiZompany Secretary
M.No. FCS7069

Address: Address: B1 / I-2, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Area,
Mathura Road, New Delhi: 1 10044

Email ID: rajat.sharma@maxbupa.com

Dated: July 31, 2018
Place: New Delhi
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Attendance Slip
(to be presented at the entrance)

MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U66000DL2008PLC182918
Registered Office: Max House, 1, Dr. JhaMarg, Okhla, New Delhi — 110020
10th Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, July 31, 2018 at 1615 hrs at 2,
South End Lane (Rajesh Pilot Lane), Rajesh Pilot Marg, New Delhi— 110011,
I certify that I am a member / proxy for the member(s) of the Company.
I hereby record my presence at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company being

held at 2, South End Lane (Rajesh Pilot Lane), Rajesh Pilot Marg, New Delhi - 110011,
on Tuesday, July 31, 2018 at 1615- hrs.

DP ID No: Client ID No:
Number of Shares:
Name of the Member: Signature:
Name of the Proxy holder: Signature:

1. Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.
2. Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for
reference at the Meeting.
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CONSENT BY SHAREHOLDER TO SHORTER NOTICE

[Pursuant to Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013]

OMAX

.

To,

The Board of Directors,

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited,
Max House,

1, Dr. JhaMarg, Okhla,

New Delhi - 110020

India

| (Nominee Shareholder of --------------- )/ (Authorised representative
o) it Yy B G =mmremmmmcmmmme—eensae , R{O-----mmmmmmmmmocc oo / having its
Registered office situated at ---——-=srso-sn-nes , the registered holder of ----Equity

Shares of Rs.10/- each in Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited (‘the
Company’), hereby give my consent pursuant to Section 101(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to hold an Extra — Ordinary General Meeting of the
Company on Tuesday, July 31, 2018 at 1615 hrs at 2, South End Lane (Rajesh
Pilot Lane), Rajesh Pilot Marg, New Delhi — 110011 at shorter notice.

secesssesssOORRRRROS esessse

Signed this 31st Day of July 2018
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Route Map and landmark to the Venue

2, South End Lane (Rajesh Pilot Lane), Rajesh Pilot Marg, New Delhi-110011
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BOARD’S REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the Tenth Board's Report of your Company
together with the audited accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

1. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018 are as under:

(Rs in '000)
Paricnars RN | T

Gross Written Premium 75,44,715 59,39,338
Add Reinsurance Accepted - -
Less Reinsurance Premium 16,67,365 3,00,177
Net Premium 58,77,350 56,39,161
g:sa;r%t; in Unexpired Risk 1,18,808 1,06,350
Earned Premium 57,58,542 54,422,811
Total Underwriting Revenue 57,58,542 54,42,811
Net Incurred Claims 28,90,226 28,27,720
Commission paid (net) 2,26,727 5,89,710
Expenses of Management (Opex) 29,17,122 25,67,280
Premium Deficiency Reserve - -
Total Underwriting expenses 60,34,075 59,84,710
Underwriting Profit/(Loss) (2,75,533) (5,41,899)
Investment Income:
Allocated to Revenue Account 2,99,474 3,36,945
Allocated to P&L Account 2,08,922 1,82,224
Other Income 27,433 5,744
Other Expenses 31,898 19,780
Provisions - -
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2,28,398 (36,766)
Key Business Parameters
Solvency Ratio 2,11 2.01
Share Capital (Rs. crores) 926.00 926.00
Ef;:ég;i Direct Investment(Rs. 453.74 453.74
No. of Employees 1,886 1,661
No. of offices 30 28
No. of Agents 25,376 20,986
No. of Policies 3,30,876 307023

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
CIN - Us6000DL2008PLC182918
Corporate Office: Block B1/1-2, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044, Tel.: + 91-11-30902000
Registered Office: Max House, 1 Dr. Jha Marg, Okhla, New Delhi - 110020
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In India, health insurance sector continues to experience high growth - it is the most
rapidly growing segment in the BFSI sector with gross written premiums increasing
by 22% from Rs. 34,588 crore in FY’17 to Rs. 42,263 crore in FY'18.

With only 34% of the Indian population having some form of health insurance
coverage in FY'17, the sector presents a huge opportunity of growth and thus
continues to attract new players. The rise in lifestyle and chronic diseases like
Cancer, Diabetes and Cardiovascular ailments over the past few years is
contributing towards the increasing awareness about health insurance. As per
conservative estimates of industry experts, the health insurance market is expected
to grow to ~Rs 51,500 crore of GWP by FY 2020 and is likely to continue the same
growth trajectory of 20% p.a. post 2020.

Max Bupa continues to cater to the B2C Health insurance sector, growing at ~32%
(5-year CAGR till FY'18), ahead of industry’s B2C growth of 22% in terms of GWP
The Health Insurance industry continues to be dominated by 4 public sector
companies, which together constitute 55% of the market share. In addition, there
are 21 private general insurance players and 6 standalone health insurers. There
were 4 new private general insurance players which started operation in FY'18, with
Edelweiss, the latest entrant, commenced operation in March 2018.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company posted a Gross Written Premium of Rs. 754.47 Crores for the year
thereby registering a 27% growth over previous year. The Company posted
Underwriting loss of Rs. 27.55 Crore during the year as compared to Underwriting
loss of Rs. 5.42 Crore during the previous year. The Net Profit for the year was Rs,
22.84 Crore as compared to loss of Rs. 3.68 Crore in the previous year.

Your Company aims to be the preferred family health insurer for B2C Customer and
offers quality health insurance services through its comprehensive distribution
network comprising of Agency, Bancassurance, & Alliances (NBFC’s and brokers)&
Direct channel (tele-assisted, digital sales and direct sales team).

Your Company has reported a good overall performance in FY 2017-18, in line with

our strategic priorities, across different operational areas. Key highlights of the year
are as follows:

* Company’s latest product offering, GoActive launched in FY 2017-18, voted
as the Health insurance product of the year 2018; was also awarded the best
product innovation and diversification in Asia

* Successfully managed the review the premium adequacy and a premium
increase across its principal retail products.

* Successful ramp up of key distribution tie up with Bank of Baroda

* Significant steps taken to drive our digital journey; quite a fewtech enabled
solutions have been implemented

* Several product development and improvement initiatives taken

* Significant improvement in MPEF (Max Performance Excellence Framework)
score

* The sixth “Walk for Health” was successfully held in 3 cities; ~62 million lives
touched

* Your Company won several awards and recognition through the year for its
focus on customer, people, brand & technology such as:

o Won “The Best Innovative Medical Insurer” award at the Business
World’s 4" Health Care Summit & Awards

Bu%
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© Recognized as “the most admired health insurance brand in India” as
per India’s Most Admired Brands Survey 2017 by Trust Research
Advisory

o Recognized as “India’s Greatest Brand for introducing a host of
innovations in the Indian HI sector” by Asia One Awards

Further building up on this year’s progress, five strategic themes will be deployed for
the year ahead, namely:

¢ People First

Remarkable customer experience
Profitable growth

Portfolio management — Renewals
Build Digital

To achieve the above, your Company’s FY 2018 key priorities have been recalibrated
to further drive “Customer centric profitable growth” as follows:

Portfolio management approach to renewals & profitable growth
Compelling product proposition, meeting customer’s needs
Build Digital

Optimize expenses & robust claims management

Strengthen processes & technology

Enable the workforce

* & & * 9 @

Overall, maintaining robust top line growth, in an increasingly competitive market
while driving operational efficiency (in terms of expense, claim, persistency, product
management), will be among the key deliverables ahead for the Company.

. MULTI CHANNEL DISTRIBUTION SET-UP

Your Company’s strategic priorities focus on profitable and sustainable growth led
by Agency and bancassurance. Your Company has relentlessly focused on building
its distribution network by consistently improving the quality of its Agency sales
force, building bancassurance channel and strengthening its Direct channels by
evaluating a comprehensive ‘digital’ strategy.

1. Agency

Agency is the Company’s largest distribution channel, spanning 28 branches
across 21 cities and contributes over 51% of overall revenue. The Agency sales
force comprises of 400 Agency Managers and circa 15,000 agents. Your
Company’s agency force is one of the most productive agency force amongst
SAHIs (Stand Alone Health Insurers). FY 17-18 saw the Agency channel focus on
automation, agent activation, process standardization, quality of new business
and persistency. Going forward, in line with the strategic priorities, your
Company has identified 4 focus areas for Agency channel -drive paperless
processing of new business, improve quality and quantity of agent recruitment,
expand variable agency program and reduce employee attrition through superior
onboarding process. -

2. Bancassurance & Alliances

Your Company is a leading player in the distribution of health insurance
through financial institutions. Max Bupa works with various Bancassurance
Corporate Agency relationships in India with reputed banks like Standard
Chartered Bank, Federal Bank, Deutsche Bank, RBL Bank, Sarv UP_€ ]
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Bank, South Indian Bank and Bank of Baroda. Out of these partners, South
Indian Bank was the new addition in the financial year.

Your Company has also entered into a corporate agency agreement with HDFC
Bank, the leading private sector bank in the country and will commence
business through this partnership in the coming financial year.,

Your Company has a robust and growing bancassurance infrastructure with
600+ FOS (Feet-on-Street) and more than 7500 partner bank branches.

Your Company also has a tie up with the leading NBFC in the country, Bajaj
Finance Limited, under the Alliances vertical,

Growth in this channel has been driven by focus on productivity increase for
existing resources, activation of product proposition in different customer
segments, system integration led sales models to activate sales in bank branches
and proposition for sale to retail asset customers.

Bancassurance and Alliances channel contributed around 48% of Company's
new sales in FY 17-18 and is now the largest new business contributor on a
monthly basis.

Over the last year, Max Bupa has worked on strengthening of relationship with
the Banks across their hierarchy with specific focus on the large partners. This
is now enabling your Company to create and launch segment wise focused
initiatives which is yielding incremental new business along with deepening of
the relationship.

The channel has worked on multiple product ideas on the group platform for
each bank partner which has been successful in creating differentiation from
other competing SAHIs. With the IRDAI mandated open architecture, there are
many banks and financial institutions that are seeking to add health insurance
partners to augment their third party fee income. This allows your Company to
look for newer opportunities as well as allows the existing bank partners to add
another SAHI player in their portfolio.

Your Company will continue exploring new opportunities in Bancassurance and
Alliances channel for potential profitable partners while ensuring that growth in
business from the existing partners.

Direct channels (E-sales and Direct sales team)

Direct channels at your Company comprises of E-sales (tele-assisted as well as
online sales) and with the Direct sales team contributing 22% of GWP in FY17-
18 Your Company has one of the largest captive telesales team in the health
insurance industry, with ~120 dedicated out-bound tele-callers. The channel is
equipped with state-of-the-art technology infrastructure (Dialler/CRM) within a
secure environment. Your Company is carving a niche for itself by creating
‘digital’ opportunities in the Health insurance space in India, given that ~22% of
retail sales are estimated to be directly/digitally influenced by 2025. Your
Company’s digital roadmap will focus on digital natives and meeting their unmet
needs by leveraging your Company’s current strengths in brand and technology.

We are looking at creating unique experiences for potential consumers on mobile
phones as a first point of connect. You Company has also made deep inroads
with likeminded digital platforms for showcasing our products on com '

wife
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platforms. Your Company aims to maintain profitable direct channels with a
focus on building a comprehensive digital strategy.

4. Business to Business (B2B) & Rural business

Apart from the retail segment, your Company also has limited presence in the
Group business where we focus on select and profitable business opportunities,
Your Company is looking to build this business by selectively working on new
accounts especially in the SME/MSME segment covering less than 1000 lives.

Your Company renewed rural business underwritten under the Rashtriya
Swasthya Bima Yojna (RSBY) scheme of the Orissa Government through an
extension for 4 months. The RSBY scheme will soon be replaced by the newly
announced Ayushman Bharat scheme and we are actively monitoring the

requirements of this scheme to understand and build our approach towards
this.

IMPROVED CUSTOMER MANAGEMENT

In line with your Company’s commitment towards exemplar service and being
transparent, customer focused, equitable and fair in its dealing with customers,
your Company continued to focus on raising the standard of customer interaction at
every touch point, right from pre-sales engagement to payment of claims.

Your Company proactively captures customer feedback through multiple formal and
informal customer listening initiatives, including Customer Transactional
Assessments (CTA) for key customer processes, online customer feedback through
portals and blogs, Max Bupa’s website, and welcome calling. Service excellence is
key to your Company’s success and therefore there is considerable focus on
customer experience and related metrics. The Customer Experience Index is
calculated annually and for 2017-2018, it stood at 72% as compared to 69% for
2016-2017. Of importance, Policy Servicing has shown improvement in FY17-18 as
compared to FY16-17 by 17%.

Your Company’s 30 minutes pre — authorization service commitment, introduced in
the Financial Year 2014 - 15, continues to be an industry leading promise in the
industry for the Financial Year 2017-18.

Your Company launched a HERO program in April’l8 to drive Service Excellence
culture across the organization. Building a service culture will mean that all
employees of Max Bupa live by a common set of belief & demonstrate homogenous
behaviour irrespective of moment of truth and individual’s role & responsibilities,
During the course of the program, there will be various workshops on fundamental
elements of Service Excellence. The construct of the program is based on monthly
rewards and recognition framework with pre-defined criteria for employees.

COST MANAGEMENT

Your Company continues to drive profitable growth by focus on higher efficiency,
improved productivity and cost optimization initiatives. It is driving optimization of
expenses through segmental analysis and identifying opportunities across functions
where expenses can be reduced. We have leveraged best practices across the Max
Group and the industry to optimize spends. We have also implemented budgetary
control system and moved from post facto analysis to real time analysis and control,
this has helped in building a cost conscious culture in the organization. The cost
optimization focus is reflected in the management expense ratio which has impr

from 54% in Financial Year 2017 to 50% in Financial Year 2018, A I”SUfe
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D. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Your Company ensures management of investment assets in accordance with the
asset liability management policy of the Company. The performance of the
investments has been commensurate with the risk assumed.

The investment corpus is invested with 96% of the portfolio in highest safety
instruments (viz. sovereign and AAA or equivalent instruments). Your Company’s
Assets under Management (AUM) stands Rs 665.79Croresas on March 31, 2018
against Rs. 627.64 Crore in previous year.

During the financial year, your Company generated an investment yield of 7.9% for
the financial year ended March 31, 2018versus 8.2% for the financial year ended
March 31, 2017. The reduction in yield is due to interest rates coming down across
maturities for most part of FY18.

- BUSINESS EXCELLENCE

In the Max Performance Excellence Framework (MPEF) assessment for Financial
Year 2017 - 2018 cycle, your Company was working towards getting a 50 point
increase under the “Good Performance” scoring band. The MPEF scores received for
Financial Year 2017-18 of 523, which shows a significant improvement in scores
from 453 last year and has over achieved our target by 20 points. This assessment
report identified that your Company has a leadership team which is focused, result-
oriented and deeply involved and engaged with key stakeholders. Your organization
reflects to be customer oriented and also demonstrates high standards of corporate
governance structure and has a systematic and elaborate strategic planning
process. It also highlighted that your Company has continued to improve brand
awareness among employees, customers and partners. The assessors also believed
that your Company has the opportunity to build innovation culture, improve
knowledge management and people practices to breach the early results stage in the
MPEF score bands.

. AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

During the Financial Year 2017-18, your Company has been felicitated with Awards
and Recognitions across functional areas. Some of these were as follows:

1. Awards and Accolades:

¢ Max Bupa Go Active recognized as Product of the Year 2017-18 through an
independent consumer survey of 4000 consumers in key cities

o Listed as a Super brand in 2017-18- Super brands is one of the biggest
consumers awards in the country,

o Won ‘India’s Most Innovative Health Insurer Award’ 2017 by Business World

o Emerged as the Most Trusted Health Insurance brand in the Brand Trust
Report 2017, This is the fourth consecutive year of Max Bupa being
recognized as the most trusted Health Insurance brand by the Brand Trust
Report published by TRA, through an independent consumer research across
16 cities in India.

o Your Company’s CEO was recognized as ‘India’s Most Promising Leader in
the Health Insurance Industry’ at the 8th Annual India Leadership Conclave
and Indian Affairs Business Awards 2017

o Our employee health & wellbeing initiative, ‘Step for Health’ received a
Bronze at the 2017 DMA Internal Connect Awards under the category of Best
Employee Engagement Campaign/Project.
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o People Pulse Survey scores 2017 were recognized by IBM Kenexa.for ‘being
significantly higher than the global insurance sector’.

4. PHILOSOPHY

Your Company’s purpose is to help customer lead healthier, more successful lives.
With an aim to build long-term healthcare partnerships for life, your Company is
working towards helping people put their ‘health first’ through your comprehensive
product and service portfolio.

Your Company’s vision is to become India’s most admired health insurance
Company by building a customer centric culture and investing in people,
technology, infrastructure to deliver high quality products and services to

customers. Such vision has been reflected in our strategic priorities for the year
ahead.

5. OPERATIONS

The operations and service of your Company work out of 29 branches and one
national operating center. The New Business and Branch operations of the Company
are supported by the state of art workflow management and CRM system ensuring
that all key processes like policy issuance and customer queries are digitized
without any paper flow. Such processes, coupled with initiatives of Instainsure and
Saral, take the Company a step further where there is no physical form needed even
at the point of sales. This ensures that we remain competitive as well as customer
focused with timely issuance of policies and resolution of queries.

Our customer service department enables the customer to have multiple accesses to
get his / her queries resolved. With technologies like IVR embedded in the call
center, we have enabled various self service options for the customer, which is
available 24X7. CRM system gives us one view of the customer enabling a high rate
of first time resolution, ensuring that customer does not have to call us back to get a
resolution for most queries. The dedicated in-house call center ensures that all
queries and complaints are resolved within the timeline. The critical call centre
metrics are internationally benchmarked and the results meet global standards. Our
pre-authorisation turn-around time continues to outperform the industry standards
with our 30 minute cashless proposition.

Your Company has invested extensively in building its Health Risk Management
(HRM) capabilities over the last two years. HRM, as a philosophy, aims to strike a
balance between treating customers fairly, enabling product profitability and
affordability of comprehensive health insurance products for the customers i.e.
ensuring access to most appropriate care, in the most appropriate setting at the
most appropriate time and at the most affordable price to the customers. HRM forms
the basis of key business decisions relating to selection, assessment and
management of health risk. Key operating decisions related to product design,
underwriting & claims philosophy, choice of market segments as well product and
geographical mix are guided by HRM principles and are enabled by strong health
and clinical data analytics. It also includes partnering with health service providers
(especially hospitals) to not just enhance the access but also the quality of
healthcare to your Company’s customers. Your Company has also made significant
progress in enhancing payment integrity, reducing overcharging by providers, fraud
detection and control to ensure only genuine claims are paid by mobilizing claims
leakage control measures and thereby maintaining affordable premiums for i THte
of health insurance products. PRI
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Your Company brings together Bupa's global health insurance with Max India’s
understanding and experience of the Indian health and insurance sectors and
customer service expertise. Your Company has developed a strong network of over
4380 quality hospitals and services its customers directly through its in-house team
of professionals, including doctors who process the claims.

Given the above practices, Your Company’s claim ratio is broadly in line with the
expected experience for the maturity of the portfolio basis pricing assumptions.

HEALTH INSURANCE PRODUCTS

Your Company offers individual and family oriented health insurance policies for
Indians across all age groups. Your Company has a comprehensive product,
Heartbeat, for retail customers, offering comprehensive health insurance cover for
both individuals and families. Keeping the customer need at the core, Heartbeat
product offers comprehensive health insurance coverage. The key USP of the
product which differentiates it from the rest of the products in the market is that it
has no specific waiting period of 24 months for insured persons who are below 46
years of age.

Further, your Company’s Health Companion product primarily caters to mass
affluent and upper affluent segment who are seeking health insurance cover at a
more economical price.

Your Company also launched the third retail indemnity product Go Active in FY18.
GoActive is a holistic health insurance plan that has been designed to cover a broad
spectrum of everyday health requirements including inpatient hospitalization and
on-the-go access to OPD (Out-patient consultations), diagnostics, personalized
health coaching, second medical opinion, behavioral counseling etc. To encourage
young customers to buy health insurance, Go Active offers a 10% lifetime discount
on premium if the policy is bought before the age of 35 years. To provide protection
against medical inflation, the product has an optional benefit ‘I-Protect’ that
increases Sum Insured by 10% on each renewal without any maximum limit,
irrespective of whether any claim has been made or not. Your Company has tied up
with premier health-tech providers including GOQIii, Practo and 1mg to create a
digitally enabled wellness ecosystem that will seamlessly offer some of these services
to the customers.

Your Company has also used comprehensive and flexible structure of Group Health
Insurance (GHI) to come up with multiple propositions to meet the needs of
bancassurance customers. Different plans under GHI help our bank and affinity
partners to target their unique customer segments with specific propositions,

In addition to the above, your Company also has a comprehensive bouquet of
products in indemnity and fixed benefit segments which includes Health Assurance
(offering 3 in 1 coverage for personal accident, critical illness, hospital cash), Group
Personal Accident, Group Criticare, Group Health Secure, Employee First Health
Insurance Plan, Swasth Parivar — Health Insurance Plan and Swasthya Pratham -
Micro Insurance Product,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors is responsible for the approval of the overall corporate
strategy and other Board related matters. The Board of Directors of your Company
comprises of Twelve (12) members as on March 31, 2018.

S
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1. During the year, your Company appointed Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mittal (DIN
00040000) as an Independent Director in at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
held on February 02, 2018.

2. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of your Company, Mr. Mohit Talwar (DIN - 02394694), Mr. John
Howard Lorimer (DIN -07138581) and Mr. Ashish Mehrotra (DIN -07277318),
being liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of your
Company and being eligible, offered themselves for reappointment.

3. In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2013, the
composition of following Committees of the Board are as follows:

a) The Audit Committee of the Board was constituted of Mr. K. Narasimha
Murthy (Independent Director] as Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Pradeep
Pant (Independent Director) and Mr. David Fletcher (Non-Executive Director)
as members of the Committee. The constitution of the Audit Committee is in
accordance with the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act 2013
and as per IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines, 2016.

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board was constituted
of Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy (Independent Director) as Chairman of the
Committee, Mr. Rajesh Sud (Chairman of the Company), Mr. Pradeep Pant
(Independent Director) and Mr. David Fletcher (Non-Executive Director) as
members of the Committee. The constitution of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the provisions of section 178
of the Companies Act 2013 and as per IRDAI Corporate Governance
Guidelines, 2016.

8. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL(“KMP”) U/S SECTION 203 OF THE COMPANIES

ACT, 2013

Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 defines the term Key Managerial Personnel
(“KMP”). As on 315t March 2018, the following employees were holding the position of
KMP:-
a) Mr. Ashish Mehrotra as the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of
the Company;
b) Mr. Rahul Ahuja as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company;
c) Mr. Rajat Sharma as the Company Secretary of the Company;

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company follows high standards of corporate governance and the Directors
have embraced this belief and taken various steps to raise the bar for Corporate
Governance. Your Company has an independent minded Board constituted of
domain experts from diverse functional areas.

The Board of your Company as on March 31, 2018 comprises of seven Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and four Independent Directors.

As per Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by IRDAI, the Chief Executive
Officer is designated as Whole-time Director under the Companies Act. The
Company has received Deed of Covenant and Declaration from Directors appointed
during the year in accordance with the said Corporate Governance Guidelines.

-

-
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Further, the Board has the following Committees, functioning in line with IRDAI
Corporate Governance Guidelines:

a) Audit Committee

b) Investment Committee

c) Asset Liability Management Committee

d) Risk Committee

e) Policyholders’ Protection Committee

f)  Product and Actuarial Committee

g) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The disclosures, as per the IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines, form part of the
Directors’ Report and are appended as Annexure - 1. The details regarding number
of meetings of the Board and its Committees along with the attendance of Directors
of the Company thereof, as required under Section 134(3) (b) of the Companies Act
2013 also form part of the aforesaid Annexure - 1.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY

a) The Company had filed with IRDA for forbearance towards exceeding the
expenses of management over the allowable limit. Based upon the submission,
the Authority in terms of regulation 11 of IRDAI (Expenses of Management of
Insurers transacting General or Health Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016
granted forbearance till FY 2018.

A sum of Rs. 107.77 cr which is in the excess of expenses of management over
the allowable limit has been transferred from Revenue Account to Profit and Loss
account in accordance with the circular no. IRDAI/Reg./12/124/2016.

b) During the FY 2017-18, the Company has entered into an additional quota share
reinsurance arrangement by ceding 20% of its risk on the indemnity portfolio
other than Employer/Employee schemes to a Reinsurer. This has led to an
increase in the Company’s underwriting capacity along with partially mitigating
the claim aggregation risk in the event of any epidemic /pandemic situation.

NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE
YEAR ALONG WITH REASONS THEREOF

Your Company did not have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate
Companies during the year.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status or Company’s operations during
the year as well as in the future.

However, IRDAI issued a soft warning against an advertisement issued by the
Company in the Financial Year 2016-17 vide its letter no.
IRDA/HLT/MISC/ORD/242/10/2017, dated October 30, 2017.

DIVIDEND
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CAPITAL

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,000.00 crores (Rupees One
Thousand crores) divided into 100,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each. As of 31t March 2018, the paid up equity share capital of your Company
was Rs. 926.00 Crore (Rupees Nine Hundred and Twenty Six crores only).

SOLVENCY

Your Company regularly monitors its solvency margins to ensure that the solvency
margin is maintained in line with the requirements of IRDAI (Assets, Liabilities and
Solvency Margin of General Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016. As on March
31, 2018, the solvency ratio of your Company stood at 211% against required
solvency of 150%.

RESERVES

Your Company has not transferred any amount to reserves, during the financial year
2017-18.

PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits under Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

IMPLEMENTATION OF INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS) IN
INSURANCE SECTOR

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has outlined the roadmap for
implementation of Ind AS in the insurance sector from 1stApril, 2018 onwards with
one year comparatives. Consequently, IRDA has set up various working groups to
prepare a roadmap for implementation of Ind AS in the Insurance sector.

However as per the latest circular (IRDA/F&A/CIR/ACTS/ 146/06/2017) from IRDAI
on IND AS, implementation of Ind AS in the Insurance sector in India has been

deferred for a period of two year and the same shall now be implemented effective 1st
April 2020.

Your Company had initiated the process to ensure compliance with Ind AS in a time
bound manner.

Your Company has submitted the Interim IND AS Proforma Financial Statement at
each quarter end during the FY 2017-18 to IRDAI.

POLICY ON ALLOCATION & APPORTIONMENT OF EXPENSES OF
MANAGEMENT

As per the Notification issued by IRDAI (Reg./ 12/124/2016 dated 27th April 2016),
no Insurer carrying on Health Insurance Business in India shall spend in any
Financial Year as Expenses of Management, an amount exceeding a certain
allowable in relation to the following expenses:

a) Commission or other remuneration paid to insurance agents and insurance

intermediaries in respect of their business transacted in the financial year;
b) Commission and expenses reimbursed on reinsurance inward; and
c) Operating expenses.

e
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The expense allowable limit is computed on the basis of percentages to Total Gross
Premium Written in India during the financial year in respect of various segments of
business. As per the notification, the Insurer shall ensure that their Expenses of
Management are within the allowable limit on a segment wise basis. Where the
Company has violated the limits of Expenses of Management for one or more
segments but is compliant on an overall Company basis, the excess of such
Expenses of Management shall be borne by the Shareholders.

Further, as required under the Regulation, the Company has prepared a Policy for
the allocation and apportionment of expenses of Management amongst the various

business segments. The Policy has been approved by the Board and is reviewed
annually.

RURAL & SOCIAL SECTOR OBLIGATIONS

Disclosure of sector wise business based on Gross Direct Written Premium (GWP) as

per IRDA (Obligations of Insurers to Rural or Social Sectors) Regulations, 2015 is as
under:

Business Year ended March 31, 2018
Sector
GWP : % of GWP
Rs.’000s
Rural 3,96,326 5.25%
Social 4,582 0.06%
Urban 71,43,807 94.69%

The Company achieved a rural target of 5.25% of GWP against the prescribed
obligation of 3% of GWP. Under the social sector, the Company covered 97,675 lives

against the prescribed obligation of 96,011 lives thereby fulfilling the social sector
obligation.

JOINT STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Statutory Auditors of the Company namely M/s. M.P. Chitale & Co, Chartered
Accountants, (ICAI FRN- 101851W) and M/s Nangia & Co., Chartered Accountants,

(ICAI FRN- 002391C) shall retire at the conclusion of the ensuing 9th Annual
General Meeting.

It is proposed to re-appoint M/s. Nangia & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi,
(ICAI FRN- 002391C) and M/s. M.P. Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants, (ICAI
FRN- 101851W) as joint statutory auditors for the FY 2018-19 at the ensuing 10t
Annual General Meeting.

Your Company has received certificates from M/s. M.P. Chitale & Co, Chartered
Accountants and M/s Nangia & Co., Chartered Accountants that their appointment
as Auditors, if made, shall be in accordance with the conditions laid down in the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and that they are not disqualified from
appointment under Section 141 and Section 144 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Hence, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board further
recommends the appointment of M/s. Nangia & Co., Chartered Accountants and

M/s. M.P. Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants as Joint Statutory Auditors of your
Company.
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The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company is part
of the Annual Report. There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

It is noted that, in line with IRDAI circular Ref: IRDA/F&A /CIR/CPM/056/03/2016
dated 13% August 2016 relating to the preparation of financial statements, the
Company continued to use an accounting policy of setting up Unearned Premium
Reserve on the basis of 50% of NWP for trailing twelve months.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Board of Directors of your Company confirms that:-

1. In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31,
2018, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year, and of the loss of the Company for that period;

3. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

S. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively,

NUMBER OF CASES FILED AND THEIR DISPOSAL UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE
SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 20 13)

Your Company is very sensitive towards any complaints related to sexual
harassment and has a well defined Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment
against Women at the workplace.

Two complaints were established by the Sexual Harassment Committee during the
Financial Year 2017-18 and proper actions were taken.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, formal Annual Performance
Evaluation process has been carried out for evaluating the performance of the
Board, the Committees of the Board and the Individual Directors.

The performance evaluation was carried out by obtaining feedback from all directors
through a confidential online survey mechanism. The outcome of this performance
evaluation was placed before the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on July
31, 2018 and further placed before the Board in the meeting held on July 31, 2018.
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ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the size and scale of
the business operations.

Your Company has developed and strengthened its internal financial controls
framework over the years. Your Company strives to create and sustain control
conscious culture by creating ‘tone at the top’ appropriately. The risk and internal
controls environment is governed by two specialized sub-committees of the Board
i.e. Audit Committee and Risk Committee. There are well defined charters for each
committee making them responsible for institutionalizing and providing oversight to
risk assessment and the controls evaluation processes. The Audit Charter and the
Risk Management Policy are reviewed annually and a quarterly reporting structure
to the respective Committees of the Board is in place. To ensure independence, the

Internal Audit department reports to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the
Board.

Further, a risk based Internal Audit mechanism is in place, wherein various
processes and functions (including finance and accounts) are audited on an annual
basis. Internal audits are carried out at two levels:

1. Processes are reviewed to ascertain their completeness and the adequacy of
controls in mitigating risks (design); and
2. Compliance of documented processes are reviewed (effectiveness).

Further, detailed financial Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) are defined for key
processes and vital controls are mapped in the finance manual. A limited review is
conducted by the Statutory Auditors on the quarterly financial statements and a
detailed annual audit is conducted at the end of each financial year,

A framework for monitoring of internal controls on financial reporting has been
documented, including structure for governance around Financial Reporting
controls during the year. Risk and Control matrices have been defined for all
identified internal controls on financial reporting.

A quarterly Director’s questionnaire is furnished to the Audit Committee to certify
that, to the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the financial results for the
quarter do not contain any false or misleading statements or figures and nothing
material has been concealed or suppressed. The document is certified by Chief
Financial Officer, Appointed Actuary and Director — Legal and Compliance. This
document covers the following aspects:

- Part 1: Accounting

- Part 2 : Taxation

= Part 3 : Actuarial

- Part 4 : Risk & Compliance
- Part 5 : Banking Operations

CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES UNDER SECTION
188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year 2017-
18 were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Details of
the transaction is enclosed herewith in the prescribed format i.e. Form AOC — 2 as
Annexure No - 3.

.y
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Your Company has a Board approved Related Party Transaction Policy and SOP,

The requisite disclosure of the Related Party Transaction has been made in the
Notes to Accounts of your Company.

In addition, the particulars of contracts or arrangements as entered in the ordinary
course of business on an arm’s length basis, with related parties of the Company are
enclosed herewith in the prescribed format i.e. Form AOC — 2 as Annexure No - 3.

27.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In accordance with Section 186 (11) (a) together with the clarification issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 13, 2015, Section 186 does not apply to
an Insurance Company. Accordingly, your Company does not have any loan given,
investment made or guarantee given or security provided as required under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

28.THE EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN U/S 92 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

The extract of the Annual Return in the prescribed format i.e, form MGT - 9 as per
the requirements of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed as Annexure
No - 4 and published in the website of the Company i.e.
https:/ /www.maxbupa.com/about-us/ maxbupa/index.aspx.

29.COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE
ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS UNDER
SECTION 178 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Your Company has a duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) which is a sub-committee of the Board. The NRC has at least 50% of its
members as an Independent Directors.

Your Company has put in place the relevant framework and a Nomination &
Remuneration Policy as required in section 178 of the Companies Act 2013. Any
shareholder, interested in obtaining a copy of the Policy, may write to the Company
Secretary at the Registered Office of Company, which is also displayed on your
Company’s website. The Policy is also attached herewith as Annexure - 6 and also
published in the website of the Company i.e. and published in the website of the
Company i.e. https://ww.maxbupa.com/about-us/maxbupa,/index.aspx.

30.STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORSUNDER
SECTION 149(6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of your
Company confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under sub section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013,

31.CODE OF CONDUCT & WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In order to uphold the highest standards of ethical behavior, your Company has a
Code of Conduct which is applicable across the organization,

N
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Your Company also has a Whistle Blower Policy approved by the Board which
empowers and provides a channel to employees for communicating any breaches of
your Company’s Values, Code of Conduct, Anti Money Laundering Policy and other
regulatory and statutory requirements. Appropriate disciplinary actions are taken
against any violation. During the FY 2017-18, actions against 11 employees were
taken by the Company as per Employee Disciplinary Action Plan. 5 complaints were
received under the Whistle Blower Policy in the Financial Year 2017-18 which were
duly investigated and closed. All the investigations and proceedings are conducted
through Code & Ethics Committee meetings. Management provides assurance on
the effectiveness of the Anti-fraud and Whistle Blower Policy to the Risk
Committee/Board through the Code & Ethics Committee updates.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) was not applicable to your Company.

The Company has constituted a CSR Committee as per the provisions of Companies
Act 2013 and IRDA Corporate Governance Guidelines 2016 on July 31, 2018. As per
the provisions, Mr. Dinesh Kumar Mittal (Independent Director) is Chairman of the
Committee. Further, Ms. Marielle Theron and Mr. David Martin Fletcher are the
members of the Committee. The Company shall in due course frame a CSR Policy for
taking initiatives as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.

Even though the Company was not required to mandatorily comply with the CSR
requirements in previous years, the Company has been taking initiatives to enable
its people, customers, partners and public at large lead healthier, more successful
lives. The “Max Bupa Walk for Health” initiative of the Company has been time and
again recognized as one of the best CSR initiative in the country.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Your Company in the meeting held on July 25, 2017 has appointed M/s.
Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries; New Delhi to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the Financial Year 2017-18 as per the requirements of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

M/s Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries, New Delhi have submitted
their report for the financial year 2017-18 in the prescribed format MR-3 which is
annexed as Annexure No - 5.

34.DIRECTORS’COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS, DISCLAIMERS

ANDADVERSE REMARKS
a) STATUTORY AUDIT

Joint Statutory Auditors of your Company for the financial year 2017-18 i.e.
M/s. M.P. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (ICAI FRN -101851W)
and M/s. Nangia & Co. LLP., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (ICAI FRN-
002391C) in their Audit Report for FY 2017-18 have given no qualifications,
reservations, disclaimers, comments and/or adverse remarks.

b) SECRETARIAL AUDIT

M/s. Chandrasekaran Associates, Company Secretaries, Delhi, Secretarial
Auditors of your Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 have given
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qualifications, reservations, disclaimers, comments and adverse remarks in its
report.

35.DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year under review, the statutory auditors have not reported any
instances of fraud by its officers or employees against the Company to the Audit
committee, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s report as
required under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

36.RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION

THEREIN OF ELEMENTS OF RISK THAT MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF
THE COMPANY

Your Company’s overall approach to managing risk is based on the ‘three lines of
defense’ model with a clear segregation of roles and responsibilities for all the lines.
Business Managers are part of the first line of defense and have the responsibility to
evaluate their risk environment and put in place appropriate controls to mitigate
such risks or avoid them. The Risk Management Function, along with the Health
Risk Management Function, Compliance Function and Chief Information Security
Officer, forms the second line of defense. The Internal Audit Function guided by the
Audit Committee is the third line of defense and provides an independent assurance
to the Board. The Statutory Auditors and regulatory oversight aided by the
Appointed Actuary and Panel Actuary in his/her fiduciary capacity are also
construed to provide an additional line of defense.

Risk management activities are supervised on behalf of the Board by the Risk
Committee, whose responsibilities conform to those prescribed by the IRDAI. The
Chief Risk Officer assists the Board Committee in overseeing the risk management
activities across the Company.

Your Company has an operationally independent Risk Management Function in
place, headed by a Chief Risk Officer. The function is responsible for the supervision
of all risk management activities in the Company, including developing the risk
appetite, maintaining an aggregated risk view across the Company, monitoring the
residual risks to ensure that they remain within tolerance levels. It also reviews the
appropriateness and adequacy of the risk management strategy and develops
recommendations to the Risk Committee as necessary. The Risk Management
function also ensures that, through various management submissions, the Board is
adequately informed on key emerging risk related issues and if necessary, provides
supplementary advice to the Board through the Risk Committee. A Management
Risk Committee has been constituted which is headed by the CEO and includes key
members such as Chief Risk Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Director - Legal,
Compliance and Secretarial, Head — Health Risk Management etc. All important risk
related matters are discussed, reviewed and monitored by this Committee on a
periodic basis.

Your Company has developed a risk management framework which defines its
approach to enterprise wide risk management. The implementation is a continuous
cycle of improvement over the Company’s existing risk management elements which
are progressively integrated into the framework. The Company has the vision of a
matured state of risk culture whereby every individual takes responsibility of risks
and has a thorough understanding of all risk tolerances.
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Within the framework, a Risk Appetite Statement is in place which identifies and
addresses each material risk to which the Company is exposed and establishes the
degree of risk that the Company is willing to accept in pursuit of its strategic
objectives, business plans and the interest of the policyholders. These material risks
have been categorized in the areas of Strategic, Insurance, Financial, Operational,
Legal & Regulatory Compliance and Reputational Risks. The Risk Management
Strategy has been developed which defines the Company’s approach to manage the
identified material risks through acceptance, avoidance, transfer and/ or mitigation.
The degree and intensity of the management action are guided by comparing the
risk appetite with the potential impact of the risk, likelihood of its occurrence and
the costs of implementing the controls. This is supplemented by various policies and
procedures in respective operating areas which help to identify, mitigate and
monitor risks.

The risk management framework also ensures that the level of risk accepted is
within the Company’s risk capacity and the level of capital adequacy is in excess of
the level prescribed in the public interest via legislation.

-ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 together
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time is annexed herewith as an
Annexure - 2.

The information in accordance with the provision of section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year
ended March 31, 2018 is provided hereunder:

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: NOT APPLICABLE

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;
(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments;

As your Company is not a manufacturing Company, the provisions relating to
conservation of energy is not applicable to your Company.

The Company has installed solar panels which are used for office lighting as
proactive measure to reduce the carbon footprint.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
1) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

We have focused and invested in changing the overall automation levels across
processes and ushering Max Bupa into a new era of customer delight, ecosystem
management, enhanced productivity and employee engagement. We have
enhanced the capabilities of our existing platforms to improve automation of
policy issuance, claims and policy servicing processes. Existing Policy
Administration System and CRM solutions have been significantly enhanced to
cater to claims automation, renewals automation, workflow tracking etc.

Bu,tf!"/L~
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End to end integration for the processing of business on the Bancassurance
channel has been further improved across our relationship tie ups. This year, we
have also embarked on the complete handheld based selling model for our front
line sales team with complete buying journey automated. Focus is now on
improving overall adoption of the same.

We have invested in a state of art learning management platform for better
dissemination of content and improving the overall employee engagement. We
also redesigned our intranet portal for seamless information sharing and
accessibility for all employees.

For a better online experience, we have revamped our existing website —
Maxbupa.com. The website offer easy and faster access, intuitive navigation,
consistent visual appeal, rich user interface and ecommerce capabilities thus
enhancing customer experience. The website has also been made responsive to
provide a consistent experience to computer and mobile users. We have also
implemented website support analytics to better monitor and measure customer
preferences, track visitors etc. We also introduced chatbot as a pilot to measure
usage, preference etc.

We launched Any Time Health (ATH) that allows instant policy issuance through
a self service mode. While this has been launched in a controlled pilot mode, the
reachability for self service has been encouraging and is an industry first
initiative.

We also introduced Point Of Care (POC) desks at few chosen provider sites that
play a critical role during the ‘moment of truth’ in a customer relationship.

The biggest technology initiative this year has been setting up a technology
integrated wellness ecosystem in partnership with Goqii to offer healthy lifestyle
coaching for Max Bupa customers as part of our new product offering -
GoActivi™, With this offering, we have introduced personalized coaching for each
customer based on extensive data analytics and gamification based incentives to
drive behavioral changes.

We have also made significant strides in enhancing our information security
capabilities and posture. We have adapted the industry best [S027001
framework for our core technology governance and execution processes. Also we
now perform regular vulnerability assessments to ensure safe working
environment.

A growing business environment also demands robust and scalable IT
infrastructure to compete successfully. This year we took massive strides to
enhance our infrastructure capabilities and achieve a 99.929% availability, Kev
highlights include:
e Migrated from outdated infrastructure to new private cloud setup,
increasing transaction speed from 102ms to 24ms
* Refreshed old hardware with new and improved technology stack to
improve performance of all business applications and setup a High
Availability (HA) landscape
* Increased our office connectivity uptime by improving network resilience

b1
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The benefits derived from technology improvement, cost reduction, new
technological development and import substitution:

Our mobile app offerings for sales teams to enable the buying journey are now
trending at over 60% adoption leading to more online payments, lesser
documentation and thus helping improve customer experience,

SARAL platform which is leveraged for automating selling for bancassurance tie

ups saw an upward adoption with upward of 90% business sourcing through
SARAL at channels where it is enabled.

CRM platform has been extended to renewals and branch operations teams,
thereby increasing functional usage and benefits,

Our analytics landscape comprising of business intelligence (BI) solution has
been significantly enhanced and availability of business insights to decision
makers has been improved through addition of 50+ analytics BI reports.

We have enabled dashboards for monitoring key processes such as Pre
Authorization, claims performance etc. which enable faster visibility, decision
making and process improvements for core operations teams and thereby help
service customers better.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):

i) the details of technology imported — Not Applicable
ii) the year of import — Not Applicable
iii) whether the technology been fully absorbed — Not Applicable

The expenditure incurred during the year on Research and Development:
Nil

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the
Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows.

(Rs. in thousands)

# Particular For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

i) | Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil Nil
ii) | Foreign Exchange Outgo

CIF Value of Imports

- Capital Goods 22727 24798

- Trading Goods Nil Nil

Others 3,080. 2,994
38.ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors wish to place on record their deep appreciation for the hard work,
dedicated efforts, teamwork and professionalism shown by the employees and the
agent advisors, which have enabled your Company to establish itself amongst the

leading Health Insurance companies in India.
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Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks to valued
customers for their continued patronage.

Your Directors also express gratitude to the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India, the Reserve Bank of India, Central and State Governments and
the joint venture partners, Max India Limited and Bupa Singapore Holdings Pte.
Ltd.for their continued cooperation, support and assistance.

oxL behalf of the Board of Directors
&4

DIN - 000239518

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2018
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LIST OF ANNEXURES
S. Particulars Relevant Rules Relevant Annexure
No form No.
1. | Disclosures for the | IRDA Corporate NA 1
Financial Year 2017-18 | Governance Guidelines
as per Corporate
Governance Guidelines
2 Particulars of Employees | Section 197 of the NA 2
Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the
Companies  (Appointment
and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014
3: Contracts and | Section 188 of the | Form AQC-2 3
arrangements with | Companies Act, 2013 read
Related Parties with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014
-+ Extract of Annual Return | Section 92 of the | Form MGT-9 B
Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the
Companies  (Management
and Administration) Rules,
2014
3] Secretarial Audit Report Section 204 of the | Form MR -3 5
Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 9 of the
Companies  (Appointment
and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014
6 Nomination and | Section 134 (3)(e) of the | Policy Copy 6

Remuneration Policy

Companies Act, 2013
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1. Disclosures for the Financial Year 2017-18 as per IRDA Corporate Governance

Guidelines

1} During the Financial Year 2017-18, the following Committee and Board Meetings

were held:-
S.No Name of the Date of Holding the Meetings
Committee
and Board
1. Audit April May July July October October | January | February
Committee 11, 08, 05, 24, 03, 2017 26, 08, 01, 2018
Meeting 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018
2. Investment N.A May N.A July N.A October N.A February
Committee 08, 24, 26, 01, 2018
Meeting 2017 2017 2017
3. Policyhoider’s N.A May N.A July N.A October N.A February
Protection 08, 24, 26, 01, 2018
Committee 2017 2017 2017
Meeting
4. Product and N.A May N.A July N.A October N.A February
Actuariat 08, 24, 26, 01, 2018
Committee 2017 2017 2017
Meeting
5. Risk N.A May N.A July N.A October N.A February
Committee 08, 24, 26, 01, 2018
Meeting 2017 2017 2017
6. Nomination April May N.A July N.A October N.A February
and 12, 08, 24, 26, 01, 2018
Remuneration | 2017 2017 2017 2017
Committee
Meeting
7. Board Meeting N.A May N.A July N.A October N.A February
09, 25, 27, 02, 2018
2017 2017 2017

2) Constitution of the Board, number of meetings held and attendance by Directors
during the year 2017-2018

S. Name of the Director No. of Board No. of Board
No. Meetings held Meetings
attended

1. Rahul Khosla 4 4

2. Rajesh Sud 4 4

3. David Martin Fletcher 4 4

4, Mohit Talwar 4 3

5. | Marielle Theron 4 b ngsN
6. | Joy Linton 4 A

New Oaghi ) /

i

e
"



3)

4)

5)

SMaAx

HEALTH INSURANCE

John Lorimer

K Narasimha Murthy

oo o] b

Pradeep Pant

10. | Burjor P. Banaji

11. Dinesh Kumar Mittal*

12. | Ashish Mehrotra

EN NN NN N N

plo|w|pa|ale

* Appointed as member of the Board w.e.f February 02, 2018.

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Board meetings.

Constitution of the Audit Committee,
Members during the year 2017-2018

number of meetings held and attendance by

Name of the Member

No. of meetings held

No. of Meetings

attended
K. Narasimha Murthy 8 8
Pradeep Pant 8 i
David Martin Fletcher 8 8

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Audit

Committee meetings.

Constitution of the Investment Committee, number of meetings held and attendance

by the Members during the year 2017-2018

Name of the Member No. of meetings No. of Meetings
held attended
Joy Linton 4 4
Marielle Theron 4 4
Ashish Mehrotra 4 4
Joydeep Saha* 3 3
Rahul Ahuja L -
Vikas Jain** 4 1

* Ceased to be the member effective from November 13,2017
** Appointed as member effective February 03, 2017.

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Investment

Committee meetings.

Constitution of the Asset Liability Management Committee, number of meetings held

and attendance by the Members during the year 2017-2018

Name of the Member No. of meetings No. of Meetings
held attended
Joy Linton 4 4
Marielle Theron 4 <
Ashish Mehrotra 4 4
Joydeep Saha* 3 3
Rahul Ahuja 4 4
Vikas Jain** 4 1

* Ceased to be the member effective from November 15; 2017
** Appointed as member effective February 03, 2017,

e\
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Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Asset Liability
Management Committee meetings.

Constitution of the Risk Committee, number of meetings held and attendance by the
Members during the year 2017-2018

Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of Meetings
attended

John Howard Lorimer
Mohit Talwar

Marielle Theron

K. Narasimha Murthy

TN PN PN S
FNFN FNICTES

Joy Linton

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Risk Committee
meetings.

Constitution of the Policyholders’ Protection Committee, number of meetings held
and attendance by Members during the year 2017-2018

Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of Meetings
attended

David Martin Fletcher
Marielle Theron

John Howard Lorimer
Burjor P. Banaji*
Ashish Mehrotra

w|b(o|nla]s
W hi— bbb

Vikas Gujral
* Appointed as member effective July 25, 2017

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Policyholders’
Protection Committee meetings.

Constitution of the Product and Actuarial Committee, number of meetings held and
attendance by Members during the year 2017-2018

Name of the Member No. of meetings held | No. of Meetings
attended
Marielle Theron 4 4
David Martin Fletcher 4 4
Joy Linton 4 4
Ashish Mehrotra 4 &4
Joydeep Saha* 3 3

* Ceased to be the member effective Resigned on November 13, 2017

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Product and
Actuarial Committee meetings.

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number of meetings
held and attendance by Members during the year 2017-2018

W
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Name of the Member No. of meetings No. of Meetings
held attended
K. Narasimha Murthy S5 5
Pradeep Pant 5 5
David Martin Fletcher 5 4
Rajesh Sud 5 4

Leave of absence was granted to the Members who could not attend Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings.

10) Details of Directors and their status of Directorship and qualifications as on March

31, 2018:
. Status of Qualifications and
S.No Particular Directorship specialization

1. Rajesh Sud
DIN - 0002395182

Chairman And Non
Executive Director

MBA from FMS, Delhi
University, Advanced
Management Program
from Wharton Business
School, University of
Pennsylvania,
Philadelphia, USA

2. Rahul Khosla

Co-Vige Chairperson

Bachelor degree with

DIN - 0003597562 and honors in Economics
Non Executive . from St. Stephen, New
Director Delhi and Chartered
Accountant

5. David Martin Fletcher | Co-Vice Chairperson | BA  honors Modern
DIN - 0007004032 and History, Durhan

Non Executive University, UK

Director

3. Mohit Talwar Non Executive Post Graduation in Arts
DIN - 0002394694 Director from St. Stephen’s

College and Post
Graduation in
Hospitality Management
from the Oberoi School.

4, Marielle Theron
DIN - 0002667356

Non Executive
Director

BSC in Statistics and
Actuary Science

Fellow of society of
Actuary

6. Joy Carolyn Linton
DIN - 0007630925

Non Executive
Director

Bachelor of Commmerce

7. John Lorimer
DIN - 0007138581

Non Executive
Director

Bachelor of Commerce
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8. K Narasimha Murthy Independent Director | B.SC, FCA, FCMA
DIN - 0000023046

9, Pradeep Pant Independent Director | Master in Management
DIN 0000677064 Studies

10. | Burjor P. Banaji Independent Director | Medical School
DIN - 0001341783 Postgraduate

11. | Dinesh Kumar Mittal Independent Director | Master’s in Physics
DIN - 00040000

12. | Ashish Mehrotra Managing Director | Graduate in Business
DIN - 0007277318 and Chief Executive | Management and MBA

Officer

Your Company did not pay any remuneration to the Directors other than sitting
fees to Independent Directors.

There was no pecuniary relationships or transactions of the Non-Executive
Directors with the Company during the Financial Year 2017-18.

Disclosure in respect of Remuneration or Commission, if any, received by Managing
or Whole-Time Director of your Company from the Holding company or Subsidiary
company, who is also in receipt of commission from the Company.

No remuneration or Commission were received by Managing Director or Whole Time

Director of the Company from the Holding Company or Subsidiary Company during
the year.

Sitting Fees

Your Company has paid sitting fees to its Non-Executive - Independent Directors
namely Mr. K. Narasimha Murthy, Mr. Pradeep Pant and Dr. Burjor P. Banaji for
attending the Committee & Board meeting during Financial Year 2016 - 2017. As
per the requirements of the Companies Act 2013, payment of sitting fees to
independent directors was approved in January 23, 2015 meeting.

Details of which is hereunder:

S. Name of Total Board Meeting Total amount
No. Independent Meetings /Committee paid in INR
Director attended Meeting

1. Mr. K  Narasimha 4 Board Meeting 4,00,000/-
Murthy

2 Mr. K Narasimha 8 Audit Committee 8,00,000/-
Murthy

3. |Mr. K Narasimha 4 Risk Committee 4,00,000/-
Murthy

4, Mr, K  Narasimha 51 Nomination and 5,00,000/-
Murthy Remuneration

Committee /ETT-‘;E;‘

Mr. K Narasimha 1 Independent //\ /2.4,00,000
Murthy Directors Meat{‘fg/ _\0\%\
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5: Mr. Pradeep Pant Board Meeting 4,00,000/-

6. Mr. Pradeep Pant Audit Committee 7,00,000/-

7. | Mr. Pradeep Pant Nomination and 5,00,000/-
Remuneration
Committee

8 Mr. Pradeep Pant Independent 1,00,000/-
Directors Meeting

9 Mr. Burjor P. Banaji Policyholders 1,00,000/-
Protection
Committee Meeting

10. | Mr. Burjor P, Banaji Independent 1,00,000/-
Directors Meeting

11. [ Mr, Burjor P. Banaji Board Meeting 2,00,000/-

8 Managing

Address:-

Apartments,

Afin  Abode Address - E-801, Ce.n»r
St Martin Road,
Bandra West, Mumbai, 400050,

For and on behalf of the Boag

Park-1, Sector-42, Sector
Road, Gurgaon - 122002

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2018

Maharashtra, India.

DIN - 07277318

DIN - 02395182
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Certification from the Compliance Officer

I, Rajat Sharma, hereby certify that the Company has complied with the requirements of
Corporate Governance Guidelines for Insurance Companies as amended from time to time
and nothing has been concealed or suppressed.

Membership o
Address: B1/ 12, Mohan Co-operative IndustrindAzSe

g |
Mathura Road, New Delhi 110044,
India.

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2018
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Annexure - 3
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third
proviso thereto

[. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis
NONE

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

f) date(s) of approval by the Board

g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required

under first proviso to section 188

II. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(1) Sales and Service Training Agreement with Max Skill First Limited

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:-

e Max Skill First Limited

¢ Fellow subsidiary

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions :-

e Service Agreement.

e Max Skill First Ltd. to provide Sales & Service training to employees and
agents of Max Bupa Ltd

c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:-

o Agreement being effective from 01.12.2015 is for 3 years with a
termination clause which states that either party can terminate the
agreement by giving one month’s written notice to other party

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any:

e The total contract value for the year 2017-18 will not exceed INR 5. 2
Crores. In addition Max Skill can earn a bonus of 30 L
performance on MOS

e) Date(s) of approval by the Audit Committee, if any: May 08, 2@4
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL




(2) Functional Support Agreement with Max India Limited

HEALTH INSURANCE

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:-
e Max India Limited
¢ Holding Company

b) Nature and Duration of contracts/arrangements/transactions :-

e Functional Support Agreement

e Max India shall provide Functional Support through its various
departments to Max Bupa in respect of Max Bupa’s
business/operations, as mutually agreed upon between the Parties.

e Agreement being effective from 01.04.2017 is for 1 year with a
termination clause which states that either party can terminate the
agreement by giving 30 days written notice to other party

¢) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any:

e The total contract value for the year 2017-18 will not exceed INR 9.00
Crores.

d) Date(s) of approval by the Audit Committee, if any: June 30, 2017
e) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

(3) Sales and Service Training Agreement with Max Skill First Limited

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:-
e Max Skill First Limited
¢ Fellow subsidiary
b) Nature and Duration of contracts/arrangements/transactions :-

e Service Agreement

e Max Skill First Ltd. to provide Sales & Service training to employees and
agents of Max Bupa Ltd

e Agreement was effective from 01.12.2015 is for 3 years with a
termination clause which states that either party can terminate the
agreement by giving one month’s written notice to other party

¢ An Addendum agreement was entered on 1lst April 2017 which expires
on 31st March 2018

c) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the
value, if any:

¢ The duration of the new contract shall be 1 year commencing lst April
2018.

e The total contract value for the FY 2018-19, will not exceed INR 5.83
Crores. Aforementioned amount does not include Annual Bonus based
on MOS achievement which will not exceed INR 0.30 Crores.

¢ Due to expansion of business, there is an additional requirement of 2
resources (1 trainer resource for South Indian Bank relationship and 1
Zonal Head for South). The additional cost of which is included in the
overall contract value of INR 5.83 Crores.

d) Date(s) of approval by the Audit Committee, if any: March 31, 20 18
e) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL =
GEW Delhi Ej 34
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Annexure - 4

Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management

(i)

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN - U66000DL2008PLC182918

(L)

Registration Date - September 5, 2008

1 i)

Name of the Company - Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

(iv)

Category / Sub-Category of the Company - Public Unlisted Company

)

Address of the Registered office and contact details - Max House, 1, Dr. Jha Marg, Okhla, New
Delhi - 110 020

(vi)

Whether listed company - NO

(vid)

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any -

Name - MAS Services Limited.

Address - T - 34, IInd Floor Okhla, Industrial area, Phase - II, New Delhi - 110020
Contact No. - 011-26387281.

Email Address - info

Max India
Limited
Address - Bhai
1 Mohan Singh
Nagar, Rail
Majra, Tehsil
Balachaur,

L85100PB201

5PLC039155 | [lolding Company

51

2(46)




(i)

A |Promoters
1 |Indian
| a) |Individual/HUF il 30 30 0.00001 Nil 30 30 0.00001 Nil
b) |Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) |State Govt (s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Mil Nil Nil Nil
d) |Bodies Corp. 408029970 64,230,000 472,259,970 50.99999 408029970 64,230,000 472,259,970 50.99999 23%
e) {Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil ] Mil
f) |Any Other.... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (A) (1) 408029970 64,230,030 472,260,000 51 408029970 64,230,030 472,260,000 51 Nil
2| Foreign
a) | NRIs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) |Individuals Nil 30 30 0.00001 Nil 30 30 0.00001 Nil
c¢) {Other— Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) |Bodies Corp. 206540000 247199970 453739970 48.99999 206540000 247199970 453739970 48.99999 23%
e] |Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil INil Nil
f) |Any Other.... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (A) (2) 206540000 247,200,000 453,740,000 49 206540000 247,200,000 453,740,000 49 Nil
f:]f;;:;:i‘[’;)h“m‘“‘ of Promoter (A) = | ¢, 4560070 | 311,430,030 926,000,000 100 614569970 311,430,030 | 926,000,000 100 23%
B |Public Shareholding
1 [|Institutions
a) | Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) |{Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c} |Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) |State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
e) [Venture Capital Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
f) | Insurance Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
BET = . : . : : :
h) i
i)
2 | Non-Institutions L i L2 < - = ;
Bodies Corp.
a) i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
iilQverseas
{Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding
{nominal share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh y f : ! > . A .
% 1ii) Individual shareholders holding M Bl i Nil Nil Nil il Nil
nominal share capital in excess of Rs 1
Lakh
c) lc. Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil il Nil




Shares held by Custodian for GDRs &

Nil Nil Nil

ADRs Nil Nil Nil Nil
Grand Total (A+B+C 614,569,970 | 311,430,030 926,000,000 100 614,569,970 | 311,430,030 926,000,000 100 Nil
(ii)
#
1 |M/s Max India Limited 472,259,970 50.99999 Nil 472,259,970 50.99999 Nil -23%
2 |Mr. Mohit Talwar* 10 Nil 10 Nil Nil
3 |Mr. Sujatha Ratnam* 10 0.00001% Nil 10 0.00001% Nil Nil
4 |Mr. Jatin Khanna* 10 Nil 10 Nil Nil
5 |M/s Bupa Singapore Holdings Pte. Ltd.| 453,739,970 48.99999 Nil 453,739,970 48.99999 Nil 23%
6 |Mr. David Martin Fletcher ** 10 Nil 10 Nil Nil
7 |{Mr. John Howard Lorimer ** 10 0.00001% L Nil 10 0.00001% Nil Nil
8 |Ms. Joy Carolyn Linton** 10 Nil 10 Nil Nil
(i)
# Particular
1 |At the beginning of the year
i |Max India Limited 472,260,000 50.9999 472,260,000 50.9999
ii |Bupa Singapore Holdings Pte Ltd 453,740,000 48.9999 453,740,000 48.9999
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
2 |year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
in
a) |Allotment during the Year AN e
i |Max India Limited There was no allotment made during the year (S : %D
i 2( New Delhi =
= T > : ,_f:-
3 I JU s A3)




At the beginning of the year

Nil

Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
2 |year specifying the reasons for increase Nil Nil Nil Nil
[ decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
|At the End of the year ( or on the date : . :
3 lof separation, if separated during the Nil Nil Nil Nil
(v)
#
1 |At the beginning of the year % E
a) |Mr. Sujatha Ratnam 10 0.00001 Nil Nil
b) {Mr. Mohit Talwar 10 Nil Nil
c) |Mr. Jatin Khanna 10 Nil Nil
d) |Mr. David Martin Fletcher 10 0.00001 Nil Nil
e) |Mr. John Howard Lorimer 10 Nil Nil
f) |Ms. Evelyn Brigid Bourke 10 Nil Nil
Date wise Increase /| Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the | v, A1 OTMENT DURING THE YEAR TO THE NOMINEE SHAREHOL
2 |year specifying the reasons for HENCE, NO CHANGE
increase [/ decrease (e.g. allotment / %
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
3 |At the End of the year

Mr. Sujatha Ratnam

10

0.00001

Nil




b) |Mr. Jatin Khanna 10 Nil Nil
c) {Mr. Mohit Talwar 10 Nil Nil
d) |Mr. David Martin Fletcher 10 0.00001 Nil Nil
e} |Mr. John Howard Lorimer 10 Nil Nil
f) |Ms. Joy Carolyn Linton 10 Nil Nil
1 JEBT! \ S
(vi) |
Indebtedness at the beginning of the Nil Nil Nil Nil
financial year
i |Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii |Interest due but not paid 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii |Interest accrued but not Nil Nil Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during the p : X X
fiancdal year Nil Nil Nil Nil
i |Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii |Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indebtedness at the end of the Nil Nil Nil Nil
financial year
i {Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii | Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil

Interest accrued but not

1 ] L
it

REMUNERATIO

Sy

provisions contained

alary

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time

a) |section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 41,208,600
1961

b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income- 184,108
tax Act, 1961

g Profits in lieu of salary under section 0
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 |Stock Option 0

(@)



3 |Bweat Equity 0
Comuission -
4 |a as % of profit - o
b. others. specify
0

5 |Qthers, please specify

1)

8 | Remmnneration to other directors

#
Mr. K
Independent Directors Narasimha mti'n decp Mr, Barjor p. Banaji
Murthy
Fee for attending Board / Committee 2,200,000 1,700,000 400,000 4,300,000
meetings
Commission Nil Nl Nil Nil
Others, please specify - Travelling il il Nit Nil

Expenses

Other Non-Excontive Directors Nil Nik Nil il
Fee f'<_>r attending Board / Committee il Nit il Nil
meetings

Commissien Nil il Nit Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nii Nil




C |REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Gross Salary

Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

41,208,600

2,482,753

28,877,625

b)

|Vvalue of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

184,108

28,392

67,992

Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
+ as % of profit
others, specifv...

Others, please specify

COMPANY

e o I e SOSN8 U e

Penalty

Nil

Nil

Nil

Punishment

Nil

Nil

Nil

Compounding

Nil

Nil

Nil

|DIRECTORS

Penalty

Nil

Nil

Nil

Punishment

Nil

Nil

Nil

SOl

{Compounding

Nil

Nil

Nil

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Nil

Nil

Nil

ew Delr,

Punishment

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Compounding

Nil

s

e
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Comorate Aclions; Concrate Solufions & QH ﬁ N D Rﬁ s EKH Rﬁ N ﬁssgcl ﬁTES®
COMFANY SECRETARIES

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

The Members

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
B 1/ 1-2, Mchan Co-Operative Industrial Area,
Mathura Read,

New Qelhi 110044

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Max Bupa Health Insurance
Company Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compiiances and exprassing our opinton thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’'s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit perlod covering the financlal year ended March 31, 2018 complied with
the stﬁtutow provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanisrm in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reparting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minuie books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018
according to the provisions of:

()} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA‘) and the rules made
thereunder; Not Applicabie

{iti) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Requlations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investrnent, Overseas Direct Investment and
Extarnal Commercial Borrowings:

(v] The followlng Regulations and Guideltnesl prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {*SEBI Act’): Not Applicable

{a} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 ;

11-F, Pocket-1V, Mayur Vibar Phage-}, Delhi-110 091,
Phone : 2271 0514, 2271 3708, E-mail | info@cacsindia.com, visit us at : www.cacsindia.com
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CHANDRASEKARAN ASSOCIATES

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

{(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Reogulations, 2014;

{e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
clfent;

(gj The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Pelisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009:; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

(vi) The other laws, as informed and certifled by the management of the Company which
are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry are:

1. Insurance Reguiatory and Development Authority of India Act, 1999,
2. Insurance Act, 1938 and various Rules, Regulations & Guidelines issued
thereunder, including circuiars issued from time to time

-
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the followlng:

{i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of Indla and
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

{(ii) SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)} Regulations, 2015: Mot
Applicable

During the perfod under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, stc. as mentioned above,

we further report that
The Beard of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Execulive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were cairied out in cornpliance with the provisions of the Act.

Continuation.........cocc.co. .
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CHENDRASEKARAN ASSOCIATES Continuation..............

Adequate notice is glven to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detaiied notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance {except in cases

where meetings were convened at a shorker notice for which necessary approvals .

obtained as per applicable provisions), and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committea Meetings are carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the
Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operatiens of the company to monitor and ensure
complfance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines,

We further repert that during the audit period the company has the following specific
events / actions having major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guldelines, standards, etc:

1. amendment in the Articles of Assoclation of the Company

For Chandrasekaran Associate
Company Secretaries s

Ré&sh Agarww

Manading Partner
Membership No. A16302
Certificate of Practice No. 5673

Date: 17 9'}1%&%

Place: New Delht

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure
A and forms an integraf part of this report.
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COMPANY SECGRETARIES

Annpexure A

The Members

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
B 1/ 1-2, Mohan Co-Operative Industrial Area,
Mathura Road,

New Delhi 110044

1. Maintenance of secretarial record Is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit,

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reagsonable assurance about the correciness of the contents of the secretarial
recqrcls. The wverification was done en the random test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records, We believe that the processes
and practicas, we fotlowed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriatenass of financial records and
.. Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have cbtained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responstbility of management, Qur examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the managemant has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chandrasekaran Associates
Company Secretaries

*

Rupesh Agarwdl
Managing Parther o 0
Membership No. A16302 -

Certificate of Practice No. 5673

Date: 9 ul"r?'i-‘w?-—

Place: New

11-F, Pocket-lV, Mayur Vihar Phase-i, Delhi-110 091,
Phone : 2271 0514, 2271 3708, E-mail : info@cacsindia.com, visit us at : www.cacsindia.com
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Annexure - 6

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

PREAMBLE

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of Max Bupa Health
Insurance Company Limited (“Max Bupa” or “Company”) is required to constitute the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC” or “the Committee”). The Company has in
place a NRC comprising of 4(four) non-executive Directors, of which 2(two) are Independent
Directors as required under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The said Committee is
currently discharging all obligations of NRC.

This Committee and the Policy are formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read along with Corporate Governance Guidelines for Insurance Companies issued by
IRDAI, in this regard.

DEFINITIONS

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Company” means “Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited.”

“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company.

“Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means

a) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager,
b) Company Secretary,

c) Whole-time Director,

d) Chief Financial Officer and

e) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of
the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

“Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

s
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“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services
rendered by him / her and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

“Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core

management team excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of
management one level below the Chief Executive Officer, Whole Time Director or Managing
Director, including all the functional heads.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The Policy ensures that

a) The level and composition of remuneration are reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

b) The Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks and

c) The Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay, reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s Report.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The role of the Committee shall be to ensure compliance of the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and various other obligations as mentioned in the Charter of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee as approved by the Board of Directors from time to
time.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and

experience of the person being appointed as Director, KMP or at Senior Management
level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has the discretion to
decide whether the qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing
Director/Whole-time Director/Manager who has attained the retirement age as per
Company Policy.

qe
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Managing Director/Whole-time Director (Managerial Person): The Company shall
appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not exceeding five
years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the
expiry of term.

b) Independent Director:

i) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years
on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for appointment on passing of a
special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the
Board's report.

ii) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms,

but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of

three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.

iii) For the purpose of determining the term of independent directors, the existing
term of the Independent Directors as on April 1, 2014 shall not be counted a
term for above clauses.

EVALUATION

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director at a yearly
interval, in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, and present a report
thereon to the Board of Directors.

REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made
there under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may

recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or .

Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and
regulations.

RETIREMENT

The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in the same position /
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the
Company.

PROVISIONS ‘RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSON, KMP AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

BUM
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Remuneration of CEO and Managing Director: The remuneration of CEQ, Whole Time Director
and Managing Director inclusive of fixed pay, perquisites, allowances, short term/long-term

incentives, retirals, and other components, will be determined by the Committee and’

recommended to the Board for approval. Wherever required, the remuneration of CEQ, Whole
Time Director and Managing Director shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company, Central Government and / or Insurance Regulatory Development Authority of India
(IRDAI), in accordance with applicable provisions.

The remuneration and commission to be paid to CEO, Whole Time Director and Managing
Director shall be as per the applicable statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Insurance Act, 1938 and amendments and rules made there-under for the time being in
force.

Remuneration to KMP and Senior Management:

KMP (other than Whole Time Director and Managing Director) and Senior Management shall be
eligible for a remuneration inclusive of fixed pay, perquisites, allowances, short term/ long term

incentives, retirals and other components as may be approved by NRC and as per compensation

strategy / framework of the Company from time to time.

REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE / INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

a) Commission to Independent Director
Subject to the approval of Board and Shareholders in accordance with the statutory
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under, the Independent

Directors may be paid profit linked commission from time to time.

Subject to the overall limit in this regard, the Board may, with mutual agreement with such
director, determine and pay different commission, to each independent director.

b) Sitting Fees

The Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings

of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the

maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or
Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to
time.

c) Engagement for Professional Services

The Company may, in line with applicable provisions of Companies Act, 1938, read with
Insurance Act, 1938 and amendments and rules there under, wherever applicable, engage
any non — executive director to provide professional services from time to time. Any such
engagement for professional services shall be made if NRC of the Company is of the opinion
that the Director possesses the requisite qualification for practice of profession.

8
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DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY HEALTH INSURANCE

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary,
in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an
individual case.

OWNER OF THE POLICY

The Policy is owned by Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and shall be
administered by the Director and Chief Human Resources Officer.

End of the document ------=-mmmmmemmemv
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M.P. Chitale & Co. Nangia & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
1st Floor, Hamam House, , A-109, Seclor-136,

Amabalal Doshi Marg, Fort Noida (Delhi -~ NCR) - 201304
Mumbai 400 02t india

Indiz Telephone +91 120 2598000
Telephune +91 22 22651186 Fax+91 120 2598010

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements forming
part of the Independent Auditor’s Report dated May 22, 2018}

This certificate is issued to comply with the provisions of paragraph 3 and 4 of Schedule C of
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations 2002, (“the IRDA Financial Statements
Regulations™) read with Regulation 3 of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for complying with the provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015 read with
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India circular
IRDAVF&A/CIR/FA/059/03/2015 dated March 31, 2015 (the “Insurance Act™), the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the “IRDA Act”), the IRDA Financial
Statements Regulations, orders/directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India (the “IRDA”) which includes the preparation of the Management Report. This
includes collecting, collating and validating data and designing, implementing and monitoring of
internal controls suitable for ensuring compliance as aforesaid

Our responsibility for the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certifying matters contained in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule C of the Regulations. We conducted our examination in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for Special Purposes
issues by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’), which include the
concepts of test checks and materiality.

In accordance with the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and based on our examination of the books of account and other records
maintained MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company™)
for the year ended March 31, 2018, we certify that:

1. We have reviewed the Management Report attached to the financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2018, and on the basis of our review, there is no apparent mistake
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements;

D

Based on the management representations and compliance certificates submitted to the
Board of Directors by the officers of the Company charged with compliance and the
same being noted by the Board, we certify that the Company has co m ) the terms
o and conditions of registration stipulated by IRDA; A




3. We have verified the cash balances, and securities, to the extent considered necessary
relating to the Company’s loans and investments as at March 31, 2018, by actual
inspection or on the basis of certificates/confirmations received from the Custodian and/
or Depository Participants appointed by the Company, as the case may be. As at March
31,2018, the Company does not have reversions and health interests;

4. The Company is not a trustee of any trust; and

5. No part of the assets of the Policyholders’ Funds has been directly or indirectly applied
in contravention to the provisions of the Insurance Act, relating to the application and
investments of the Policyholders” Funds.

This certificate is issued to comply with Schedule C of the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance
Companies) Regulations 2002, (“the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations™) read with
Regulation 3 of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulation and is not intended to be used or
distributed for any purpose.

For M P Chitale & Co. For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
irm Registration No.: 101851W Firm Registration No.: 002391C
uk\\u \%‘L -
Murtuza Vajihi Vikas Gupta
Partner Partner
Membership Neo. 112555 Membership No. 076879
Place: Mumbai Place: Noida
Date : May 22,2018 Date: May 22, 2018

ZAUSER I'Wiax Bupa health\Aud 1 7-18Mar 18¥Q-[ViFinal\Max Bupa Cash Certificate March 2018.doc
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Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Ist Floor,Hamam House, , A-109, Sector-136,
AmabalalDoshi Marg, Fort Noida (Dethi — NCR) - 201304
Mumbai 400 021 india

India Telephone +91 120 2598000
Telephone +9122 22651186 Fax+91 120 2598010

INDEPENENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MAX BUPA HEALTH
INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED(*“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2018, the related Revenue Account(also called the “Policyholders’ Account” or the
“Technical Account™), the Profit and Loss Account (also called the “Shareholders’ Account” or
“Non-Technical Account”™) and the Receipts and Payments Account for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the Balance Sheet, the related Revenue Account, the Profit and
Loss Account and the Receipts and Payments Account of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the provisions of The Insurance
Act, 1938 (the “Insurance Act”)(amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015), the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the “IRDA Act”), the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002 (the “IRDA Financial Statements
Regulations™), orders/directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
(the “IRDAI”/ “Authority”) in this regard, and the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 further
amended by Companies (Accounting Standards) amendment rules 2016 to the extent applicable
and in the manner so required .

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statement , that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors® Report (continued)
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Insurance Act, the IRDA Act, the Regulations,
the Companies Act and the Rules made there under, including accounting standards, to the
extent applicable, and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Insurance Act, the IRDA

Act, the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations and the Companies Act to the extent

applicable and in the manner so required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, as applicable to Insurance Companies:

{a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2018;

(b) in the case of Revenue Account, of the net surplus for the year ended on that date;

(¢) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(d) in the case of the Receipts and Payments Account, of the receipts andzpayments for the
year ended on that date. o NG
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

Other Matter

The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of claims Incurred but Not Reported (‘IBNR)
including claims Incurred but Not Enough Reported (‘IBNER) at March 31, 2018 is the
responsibility of the Company’s Actuary (“Actuary”) and has been duly certified by the
Actuary. The Actuary has also certified that in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation
are in accordance with the applicable guidelines and norms, if any, issued by Insurance
Regulatory Development Authority of India (“IRDAI”) and the Actuarial Society of India in
concurrence with the IRDAIL We have relied upon the Actuary’s certificate in this regard for the
purpose of this report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the IRDAI Financial Statements Regulations, we have issued a separate
certificate dated May 22, 2018 certifying the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
Schedule C to the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations.

2. Asrequired by the IRDAI Financial Statements Regulations, read with section 143(3) of the
Act, we report that:

(a)
(b)

(©)
(d)

(e)

6

(2)

()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far
as appears from our examination of those books;

As the Company’s financial accounting system is centralized, no returns for the purpose
of our audit are prepared at the branch of the Company;

The Balance Sheet, the Revenue Account, the Profit and Loss Account and the Receipts
and Payments Account dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 further amended by Companies (Accounting Standards) amendment rule
2016 to the extent they are not in consistent with the accounting principles as prescribed
in the IRDAI Financial Statements Regulations and orders/directions issued by IRDAI in
this regard;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance
Act, the Regulations and/or orders/directions issued by IRDAI in this regard;

On the basis of written representations received from the Directors of the Company, as
on March 31, 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a Director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to

refer to “Annexure A" to this report;
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

(1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer schedule 16 note C ~ 32 to the
financial statements;

ii.  The Company has made provision, for material foreseeable losses on long term
contracts, including insurance contract. The Company did not hold any
derivatives during the year.

ili.  There have been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M P Chitale& Co. For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
m Registration No.; 101851W Firm Registration No.: 002391C

gde

Murtuza Vajihi : Vikas Gupta

Partner Partner

Membership No. 112555 Membership No. 076879
Place: Mumbai Place: Noida

Date : May 22, 2018 Date: May 22,2018

ZAUSER I\Max Bupa health\Aud 17-18WMar 18\Q-1ViFinal\Max Bupa audit report.docx



: MPChltale& CO-_. : S 'Nangia'&”co_i‘i};

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
[st Floor,Hamam House, , A-109, Sector-136,
AmabalalDoshi Marg, Fort Noida (Delhi — NCR} - 201304
Mumbai 400 021 India

India Tefephone +91 120 2598000
Telephone +6122 22651186 Fax+91 1202598010
ANNEXURE A

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF MAX BUPAHEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“theAct™)

To the Members of
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Max Bupa Health Insurance
Company Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the yvear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control with
reference to financial statements that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
including the provisions of the Insurance Act,1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendments)
Act, 2015( “the Insurance Act™), The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (The
“IRDA Act”), The IRDA financial statement regulation order/directions issued by the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India (The “IRDA™) in this regard .

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether internal financial control with reference to financial statements over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
respects.




M.P. Chitale& Co. " Nangia & Co. LLP
Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial control with reference to

financial statements over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conuol‘s“@y\er
S ey

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. y

6
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

Other Matter

The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of claims Incurred but Not Reported (‘IBNR) including
claims Incurred but Not Enough Reported (‘IBNER) is required to be certified by the Company’s
Actuary as per the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002 (the “IRDA Financial
Statements Regulations™), and has been relied upon by us, as mentioned in “Other Matter” para of our
audit report on the financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018.
Accordingly, the internal financial controls over financial reporting in respect of the valuation and
accuracy of the aforesaid actuarial valuation is also certified by the Company’s Actuary and has been
relied upon by us. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of above matter.

For M P Chitale& Co. For Nangia & Ce. LLP
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
trm Registration No.: 101851W Firm Registration No.: 002391C

Jude. 0
Murtuza Vajihi Vikas Gupta
Partner Partner
Membership No. 112555 Membership No. 076879
Place: Mumbai Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2018 Date: May 22, 2018
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FORM-B-RA
MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURAMCE COMPANY LIMITED
RE W STRATION #2145, DATI OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAL FEGRUARY 15 2010

REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENOED MARCH 31,2018

For the year ended For the yvear ended
Particulars Scheduly Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31,2017
(Rs.'000) (Rs.'000)

1. Pramiums earmed (Net) 1 57.58,542 54,42 811
2 Profili{l.oss) on salelredemption of Investments 19,699 46,306
3 Others - -

4 inderest, Dividend & Rent - Gross 2,79,575 2,490,639
Total (A) 60,58,016 57,79,756
1 Claims incurred {Net} 2 28,90,226 28,27,720
2 Commission (MNet) 3 2,268,727 5,89.710
3 Operaling Expenses related to Insurance Business 4 29,17,122 25,67,280
4 Premium Deficiency B -
Being Expenses of Management over the aliowable limit . {(10,77,713) (10.55,683)
trangferied to Profit and Loss Account®
Tetal (B) 49,586,362 49,29,027
Operating ProfititLoss) [C= (A - B)] 11,01,654 4,50,729

Apprapriations

Transfer to Shareholders’ Account 11,01,654 8.50,729
Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve R -
Transfer to Cther Reserves - R
Tatal (C) 11,044,654 8,50,729

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes 1o Accounts 16 .

The Schedules and accompanying notes referred to herein form an integrat part of the Revenue Account

*As required by Insurance Fegulatory ang Cevelopment Authority of India (Expenses of Management of Insurers transacling General or Heslth Insurance
business) Regulations, 2018, expenses of management incurred during the year ended March 31, 2018 in respeci of Miscellangous-"Health" & 'PA” insurance
business transactions in India by the Company have been fully recognized in the revenue accounl as expenses 10 the extent allowable as per regulations. As par
the directions from IRDAL, expenses in excess of allowable fmits, as per the Regulations have been transferred to Shareholders Accounis,

As per our Audit report of even date attached Far and an behalf of the Board of Diractors
Max Bupa Health Insurance Compa

Vikas Gupta

Pariner K. Narasimia Murthy
tMembership No DT68749 DIN: 0006230486
Place: Noida

or M P Chitale & Ca. tLJmpany Secratary
dered Accountants Rajat Sharma AshishMehrotra
Mem Na. FCS708% DIN: 07277318
" m\w&‘ﬂx /L*?L&/(Wuw '
Murtuza Vajihi Panef Actuary Chief Financial Officer
‘Partner Hema Malini Ramakrishnan Rithul Ahuja

Place. Mumbai Membership No 74

fa v May 22, 2018 Date: May 22, 2018 CIN - LJ66000DL2008PL 2182916




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

FORM-B-PIL.

REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH :RDAI: FEBRUARY 15, 2010

PROFIT AND L0.5 ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3%, 2015

Forthe year ended Forthe year ended
Particulars Schedule Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
{Rs.'000) (Rs.'000)
1 Operating Profitf{Loss)
{a} Miscellaneous Insumance 11.01,654 8,50,72¢
2 Income From Investments
{a) Interest, Dividend and Rent - Grass 1.95,040 157,181
{b} Profit/{Luss) on saiefredemption of Investments 13.882 25,043
3 Gtherincome
{a) Gainf(Loss) an Foreign £xchange Flucluation (5,464) 2,544
{b) Interest Income 968 1470
{c} Provisions written back 31,929 1730
Total (A) 13,38,009 10,38,697
4 Provisions (Other than Taxation)
{a) For diminution in the value of investments - -
{b} Faor doubtfut debts 5,505
{c} Penally - -
{d} Others - -
& Other Expenses
{(a) Expenses other than those related to insurance Business 26,393 19,780
{b} Bad debts written off - -
(¢) Being Expenses of Management over the allowable limit
transferred from Revenue Account 10.77.713 10,585,683
Total (B) 11,09,611 10,75,463
Profit/{l.oss) Before Tax 2,28,298 (36,766)
Provision for Taxation . .
Profit{Loss) After Tax s 2,268,398 N (36,766)
Appropriations
(a) Interim dividends - -
{b) Proposed final divideng - -
{c} Dividend distribution tax - -
(d) Transferto any Reserves or Other Accounts - -
Balance of Profit{Loss) brought forward from last year {69,29,863) (68,93,197)

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet

Basic and Diluted Earning per Share of Rs. 10/ each
(alsa refer note 21 in Schedule 16)

Significant Accounting Policies and Motes to Accounls

0.25 (0.04)

16

The Schedules and accompanying notes referred to hergin form an integral pas of the Profit and Loss Account

As per our Audit repori of even date attached.

Vikas Gup!
Partner
Membership No. D76
Place: Noida

or M P Chitale & Co.
riered Accountants

o m\ws\,&\

Murtuza Vajihi
Partner
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 22, 2018

Far and on behaif of the Board of Directors
Max Bupa Health Insurance CompanyjLimi

“7/
Dirsttor irman & Director

K. Narasimha Murthy
DIN: 00023048

3
Company Secretary

Rajat Sharma

Mem No. FCS7069 DIN; 07277318
Mesmpiobine L-.

Panel Actuary Chief Financial Officer

Hema Malini Ramakrishinan Rahul Ahuja

tMembership No.74

Date May 22, 2018 CIN - UBB000DL2Z008PLC182918
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FORM-B-BS

MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAI: FEBRUARY 18, 2010

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

The Schedules and accompanying rotes referred to herein.form an integral part of the Balance Shee!

As per our Audit report of even date attached,

S

Vikas Gupta
Partner
Membership No. 076879
Place: Noida

For M P Chitale & Co.
artered Accountants

Murtuza Vajihi
Partner
Place: Mumbat

Date: May 22, 2018

As at As at
Particulars Schedule Mar 31, 2618 Mar 31, 2017
{Rs.'000) {Rs5.'060)

Sources of Funds
Share Capital 5 92,60,000 92,60,000
Share Apptication Monay - -
Reserves and Surplus 6 - -
Fair Value Change Account - Shareholders 1,040 1,320
Fakr Value Change Account - Policyholders 35 1,318
Borrowings 7 - -
Total 9261075 92,62,636
Application of Funds
Investments - Shareholders 8 30,00,576 27,586,308
Investments - Policyholders 8A 36,657,308 34,90,121
Loans 9 - n
Fixed Assels 10 368,833 3,27,967
Current Assets:

Cash and Bank Balances 11 2,84,941 1,76,510

Advances and Other Assets 12 896718 478,719
Sub-total (A} 11,81,659 6,55,229
Current Liabilities 13 26,73,645 20,71,649
Provisions 14 2875222 28.55.301
Sub-total (B) 56,48,867 49,26,950
Net Current Assets (C) = (A - B) . (44,67,208) (42,71‘721}
Miscellaneous Expenditure 15 - -
{To tha extent not written off or adjusted)
Debit Balance in Profit and Loss Account 67,017,566 68,208,963
Total 92.61,075 9262636
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes {o Accounts 16

For and cn behalf of the Board of Birectors

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited

¥. Narasimha Murthy
DIN: 00023046

‘\%;anany Secretary
Rajat Sharma

Mem No. FCS706%

Panel Actuary

Hema Matini Ramakrishnan
Membership No.74

Date: May 22, 2018 Cl

rnan & Director
h Sud
DINJ 02395182

-C

CEQ & Managing Director
Ashish Mehrotra
CIN: 07277318

S

Chief Finangial Officer
Rahul Ahuja

- UGE0CODL2C0BPLC182918



MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMIYED

REGISTRATICN HO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAL FEBRUARY 15, 2010

RECEIPTS AND FAYMENT ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 33, 2050

For the year ended

+or the year ended

Sno Partcutars Mar 31, 2018 Mar 3%, 2097
{Rs.’000) {R$.'006)

A, Cash Flows from the Operating Activities:

i Premium received from Policyholders, including Advance Recaipts 83.66.521 66,04,914

2 Other Receipls - -

3 Paymantlo the reinsurers, net of commisisons and clams {150,455} (1,33,242)

4 Paymanls to co-insurers, nel of claims recovery - (873}

5  Payments of claims (-37.08.505) (28.96,735)

6 Payments of commizssion and brokerage {7.80.511) 8,17437)

7 Payments of Other Operating Expenses {26.56,644) {21,69,921)

8 Prefiminary and Pre-cperalive Expenses - -

9 Deposits, Advances and Staff Loans {700 {14,049

10 Income Taxes Paid (Net) - -

11 Service tax & GST paid (9.00.857) {6,68,321}

12 Other Paymenis . B

13 Cash Flows before Extraordinary ltems 151,040 84,336

14 Cash flow from extraordinary operations . -

15 Net Cash fiows from operating aclivities 1.5%,043 84,336

B. Cash flows from lnvesting activities:

1 Furchase of lixed assels {2,00,212) (2,10,123)

2 Proceeds from sale of fixed assels 276 -

3 Purchase of investmeanis (23,09,662) {39.74,460}

4 iLoans disbursed - -

5 Sales of investments B 6.64.118

& Repaymenls received fram lnvestments 20,36.500 28,42,157

7 Rentsilaterests/ Dividends received 462,400 3,9B,484

8 Investments in money market Instruments and in liquid mutual funds {Net) {4,16,554) 38.536

§ Expenses related to investments - -

10 Net Cash flows from investing activities {4,26,952) {2,41,308)

G. Cash flows frem financing activities

1 Proceeds from issuance of Share Capital ¢ - 2,80,000

2 Proceeds from borrawing - .

3 Repayments of banowing - -

4 interestidividends paid - -

% Net cash flow from financing activities - 2,80,000

D Effect of forelgn cxchange rates on cash and cash equivalents, et N .

E Netincreasel{decranse) in cash and cash equivalents (2,75903} 1,23 028
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the Period 810,752 6,87,724
Cash and cash equivatents at the end of the Period §.34.8449 8.10.782
Net Increasef{decrease) in cash end cash equivalents (2,75.903) 1,23,028
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet 2t the ond of the year
Cash and Bank Balances {Refer Schedule 11) 2,684,941 1,76,510
Shont term fiquid investments (Refer Schedule 8; Investmants Shareholder's Fund) 226,622 221,71
Shedt term liquid investments (Refer Schedule 8:A Investments Peligyholders Fund) 23.206 4.12.521
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the end of the Period 5,34,84% 8,10,752

As per our Audilt report of even date allached.

Vikas Gupta
Partner
tMembership No, 076878
Place: Noida

KM P Chitale & Co.
ered Accountanis

(83 bu\\,og\cw

Hurtuza Vajihi
Fartner
Place: Mumbai

Date May 22, 201@

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Li

a} ‘\7/
Hréctor

K. Narasimha Murthy
DIN; 00023045

impany Scecretary
Rajat Sharma

tem No. FC57089

%MWM .

Panel Actuary
Hema Malinl Ramakrishnan
Membership No 74

f2v, hoy 22. 2018

Rajdsh Sud

QINj 02395182

CED & Manag@:or

Ashish Mehrotra
BIN: 07277318

Chicf Financial Officer

Rahul Aluja

CIM - UEGOO0DL2008PLC182918
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MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION v#TH IRDAL: FLBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF CONDENSED FIN®CIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE ~ &
SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
{R5."000) {Rs.’000}
1 Authorised Capital
1,00.00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 1.00,00,000 1,00,00,000
2 Issued Capital
92,60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each (Previous year ended as at 31st March, 2017
$2,60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each) 22,60,000 92,60,000
3 Subscribed Capital
92,60,00,000 Equily Shares of Rs 10 each (Previous year ended as at 31st March, 2017
92.60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each} 92,60.000 92,60,000
4 Called-up Capital
92,60,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each (Previcus year ended as at 31st March, 2017
92,60.00,080 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each) 82,60,000 92,60,000
Less: Calls unpaid
Add:  Equity Shares farfeited (Amount originaily paid up) - -
Less: ParValue of Equity Shares bought back - R
Less: Preliminary Expenses - -
Less: Expenses including commission or brokerage on
underwriting or subscription of shares - -
Total 92,60,000 92,60,000

+ *
Out of the above, 47,22,80,000 (Previous year ended as at 31st March, 2017 47,22,60,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each are held by the holding company
along with its nominees,

SCHEDULE - 5A
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
[As certified by the Management)

As at Mar 31, 2018 As at Mar 31, 2017

Shareholders Number of
Shares % of holding Number of Shares % of holding

Promoters

- indian 47,22,60,000 51.00% 47,22,60,000 51.00%
- Foreign 45,37,40,000 49.00% 45,37,40,000 49.00%
Others

Total 92,60,00,000 100.00% 92,60,00,600 100.00%




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPAMY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTATION WITH IRDAL FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
(Rs.'000; (Rs.’000)

SCHEDULE -8
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
1 Capitat Reserve - -
2 Capilal Redemption Reserve - -
3 Share Premium . -
4  Generai Reserves - -
Less Debit balance in Profit and Loss Account - -
Less: Amourt utilized for Buy-back .
Catastrophe Reserve - -
Other Reserves - -
Balance of Profit in Profit & Loss Account - -
Total - -

~ M

SCHEDULE -7

BCRROWINGS

Debeniures/ Bonds - -
Banks - -
Financial Institutions - -
Others - -
Total - -

B0 PN e




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPAMNY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAI: FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART GF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE -8
INVESTMENTS - SHAREHOLDERS

As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
{Rs.000) {Hs.'000)

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
1 Government securities and Government guaranieed
bonds including Treasury Bills 3,562,607 3,06,359
2 Other Approved Securities 5,865,522 5,14,540
3 Other Investments
{a) Shares
(aa) Equity - -
{bb) Preference - -
(b) Mutual Funds - -
(c) Derivative Instruments - -
(d) Debentures/ Bonds 2,564,605 2,55,132
(e) Gther Securities - -
(f) Subsidiaries - -
(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate - -
4 snvestments in Infrastructiure and Social Sector 5,498,395 5,465,496
5 Other than Approved Investments, - -

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
1 Government securities and Government guaranteed
bonds including Treasury Bills (refer Note (b} below) 1,03,100 -
2 Other Approved Securities -
3 Other Investments
(a) Shares

(aa) Equity - -

{bb) Preference - -
{b) Mutual Funds 2,26,622 99,079
{c) Derivative Instruments - -
{d) Debentures/ Bonds 251,140 2,41,758
(e) Other Securities 3,509,500 5,97,300

) Subsidiaries - ) -
(g9) Investment Properties-Real Estate -
Invesiments in Infrastructure and Social Sector 3,38,081 1,00,000

4
5 Other than Approved Investments® - 1,22,642
Totai 30,00,576 27,086,306
* Represents investmenis in muiual funds
Motes:

a.  Aggregate amount of shareholder's investments other than listed equity securities and derivative instruments is Rs.
30,060,576 thousand {Previous year ended as on 31st March. 2017 Rs 27.86,306 thousand}. Market value of such
investmenis is Rs. 30,05,874 thousand (Previous year ended as on 31st March, 2017 Rs. 28,60,614 thousand}

b.  The nhistorical cost of investments in mutual funds which have been valued on fair value basis is Rs. 2,25,582 thousand
(Previous year ended 31sl March 2017 Rs. 2,20,401 thousand).




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITEDR
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAL FERETUARY 15 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE - 8A
INVESTMENTS - POLICYHOLDERS

As at As at
Particulars #Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
.. _.{Rs.’000) {Rs.’000)

LONG TERM INVESTMEZNTS
1 Government securities and Government guaranteed
bonds including Treasury Bills 11,06,587 11,18,787
2 Other Approved Securities - -
3 Other investments
(a) Shares
(aa) Equity - -
(bb) Preference . - -
(b) Mutual Funds - -
{¢} Derivative instruments - -
(d) Debentures/ Bonds 5,03,180 8,52,994
{e) Cther Securities - 22,500
{f} Subsidiaries - -
{(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate - -
4--dAnvesiments in Infrastructure and Social Sector 145,056,342 6,587,361
5 QOther than Approved Investments ' - -

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
1 Government securities and Government guaranteed
bonds including Treasury Bills (refer Note (b) below? - -
2 Gther Approved Securities - -
3 Other Investments

(a) Shares
(aa} Equity . -
(bb} Preference - -
{b) Mutual Funds 23,286 1,268,717
(<) Derivative instruments - -
(d} Debentures/ Bands 4,89,583 3,40,237
{c) Gther Securities 2.38,200 39,600
{f) Subsidiaries - -
1) Investment Properties-Real Estate - -
4 Investments in Infrastructure and Social Sector 2,9'1,160 1,968,121
5 Other than Approved Investments® o - 2,585,804
Total . 36,57,308 34,90,121

* Represents investments in mulual funds
Notes:
a Aagregate amount of policyholder's invesiments other than listed equily securilies and derivative instruments is Rs.

36.57,308 thousand (Previcus vear ended as ca 31st March 2017 Rs. 34,90.121 thousand). Maket value of such
investments is Rs. 36,81,857 thousand {Previous year ended as on 3 i1 March 2017 Rs. 35,64,687 thousand).

b.  The historical cost of invesiments in mutuai funds which have been valued on {air value basis is Rs. 23,251 thousands
(Previous year ended 31st March 2017 Rs. 4,11,205 thousand)




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRA/ION WITH DAL FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHERULE -9
LOANS
As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
{Rs.'000} {Rs.’000}
1 Security-Wise Classification
Secured
(a) On morigage of property - -
{aa) In India - -

{bh) Qutside india - -

(P} On Shares, Bonds, Govt. Securities - -
{c) Others . -
Unsecured } . -
Total B .

2 Borrower-Wise Classification
{a) Central and State Governments - -
{b) Banks and Financial Institutions - "
{c) Subsidiaries - -
{d) industrial Undertakings - -
(e) Others - -
Total -

3 Performance-Wise Classification

(2) Loans classified as standard - -
(aa) In India - -
(b} Ouiside India 1 -

{b} Nen-performing loans less provisions - -
{aa) in India - .
{bb) Outside India - -

Total - -

4 Maturity-Wise Classification
{a) Short Term - -
{b)Long Term -
fotai - -




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DA & OF REGISTRATION WiTH IRDAL: FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART Ui FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at Ag at
Particulars Mar 31, 2018 Mar 31, 2017
{Rs.'000) {Rs.’000)

SCHEDULE - 11

CASH AND BANK BALANGES
i Cash (including chegues, drafts and stamps) 21.227 26,183

2 Bank Balances

(8) Deposit Accountis

{aa) Short-tetm (due within 12 months) 1.06,500 54,000
{bb) Others -
(b} Current Accounts 157,214 96,327
(c) Oithers - .

3 Money at Cali and Shoit Notice
{a) With Banks - "
(b} With other Inslitutions - -
4 Others

Total 2,384,941 1,76,510

Ralances with non-scheduled basks induded in 2 above is Fis 189 thousand (Pravious vear ended 31gl March 2017
Rs. 474 thousang)

SCHEDULE - 12
ADVANCES AMD OTHER ASSETS

ADVANCES

Reserve daposits with ceding comparies

Application money for investments - -
Prepayments 31.548" 28,742
Advances ic Directors/Officers - -

(9% 0 (Y

-

5 Advance lax paid and taxes deducted at source - -

G Others (1 be specified)

‘a) Advance to Suppliers 53,508 63,701
i.ess’ Provisions made (3.607) (3.876)
Sub-total 49 802 59,825
{b) Other advances (Gross Amount) 2,248 285
Less: Provisions made {2,248) -
Sub-total - 285
Total {A) 21,450 35553
OTHER ASSETS

1 Income accrued on investments® 1,768,197 2,068,271

2 Qutstanding Premiums** 35 598 38,793
Less: Provisions made (41,698) (38,293
Sub-tatal 43,900 50,500

3 Agenis’ Balances 168 2,122
Less: Provisions mads (165} {2,122)
Sub-total -

4 Foreign Agencies Balances -

5 Due from other entilies carrymg on inswance business 3.66.267 33,010
Less: Provisions made " (2,020
Sub-totai 3.66,267 60,977

6 Due frem subsidiaries! holding - -

7 Daposit with Reserve Bank of india {Pursuant to section 7 of - -

Insurance Act, 1938}

4 Others
{(a) Rent and othar depasits 30,633 49,933
(b} GST unutilized credit 1,57,333 18,185
(¢) Deposits against unclaimed amount of policyhaiders 17,998 .
{d) Interest accrued on deposits against unclaimed amount — 439 .

Total {B) 8,15,268 3,89.856
Total (A+B) 8,956,718 4,783,719

* Includes Interest accrued on Fixed Deposits classified under Cash & Bank

**Includes Rs, 74,273 thour 3.d (Previous year ended as on 31st March 2017 Rs. 81,817 thousand) rc2ivable fram
Central ! State Govemmani © -, scount of premium under RSBY Scheme against which provision of Rs 4% Fi8 thousand
(Previous year ended as un 3. March 2017 Rs 38.293 thousands) has been created




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NG: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAIL: FEBRUAR' 15, 2010

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
Particulars war 31, 20138 War 31, 20117
(Rs.'00Q) (Rs.’000)
SCHEDULE ~13
CURRENT LIABILITIES
1 Agents’ balances 84,207 68,368
2 Balances due {o other insurance companies 4,70,315 1,02,654
3 Deposiis held on re~-insurance caded - -
4 Premiums received in advance 52,428 37,375
5  Unallocated premium 71,363 86,180
6 Sundry creditors 13,22,976 11,64,347
7 Due fto subsidiaries/ holding company - -
8 Claims Qutstanding” 522,005 5,31,206
9 Unclaimed amount of policyholders 13,676 16,554
10 Due to Officer/ Director - 25,892
11 Others
{a) Tax deducted at scurce 60,548 25,901
(b} Other statutory dues 9,708 7.569
47} Service Tax & GST liability 42,764 -
1t} Advance from Corporate Clients 11,747 . 4,360
{=) Interest on unclaimed amount of Palicyhviders 1,907 1,163
Total 26,73,645 20,71,649
“includes IBNR and IBNER reserves
- SCHEDULE - 14
- PRUYISIONS
1 Haserve for Unexpired Risk” 29,239,618 28,20,810
2 foriaxation (less advance tax paid and taxes deducted at
source) - -
3 Forproposed dividends - -
4 For dividend distribution tax - -
5 OCthers
{a) For Gratuity 10,975 2,014
(b} For Leave Encashment 24,629 25477
{c} Premium Deficiency Reserve - -
Total } 29,75,222 28,55,301

* Includes provision for freelook cancellation Rs. 943 iousand (Previous year ended 31st March 2017 Rs. 1,229

thousand).

SCHEDULE - 15
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(Vo the axient not written off or adjusted)
1 Discount Allowed in issue of sharesf debentures
2 Olhers
Total




FORM IRDALGI-TA
STATEMENT OF ADMISEIBLE ASSETS: MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
As at Mar 31, 2018

Name of Insurer: Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
Registration Mumber: 145

Date of Registration” February 15, 2010

Classification: Business wilhin India/ Tola Business

{Allamounts in Rupees of Lakhs)

Particilars Policyholders Aic |Sharaholders Alc {Total
Investments

Invesiments Shareholder SCH 8 - 30,008 30,066
investmenis Policyholder SCH 8A 36.573 - 36,573
Total Invasiments as per BS -— (A} 36,573 30,006 6,579

Inadmissible investmenl assests as per Clause (1) of Schedule |---- (B} - - -

Fixed assets

Fixed assets as per BS ---- {C ) - 3.688 3,688
Inadmissible Fixed assets as per Clause (1) of Schedule - | -—-(D) - 311 311
Current Assets

Cash & Bank Balances as per BS —- (E) - 2,849 2,849
Advances and Other assets as per BS —- [F} - 8,967 8,967
Total Current Assets as per BS -~ {G) = (E) + (F) - 11,816 11.816
Inadmissible Current Assets as per Clause (1) of Schedule - | -——-(H) - 542 542
Loans

Loans as per BS {1} a - - D
Falr Value Changa Account subject fo minimum of Zero —- (J) - 10 0
Total Assets as per BS -— (K) = (A} +(C )+ {G) + (i} 36,573 45,510 32,082
(Excluding current liabiliies and provisions)

Total Inadmissible Asgeis «(L) = {B) + (D) + (H} + () - 963 963
Total Admissible Assets for Solvency ---- (K) - {L} 36,573 44,547 31.120

{Exciuding current liabilities and provisions)

We Certify the statements has been prepared in accordance with Scheduls i

Panel Actuary CEO & Managing Director
‘. ;\*l\

Henia Malini Ramakrishnan, FiAl hishMehrotra

hzmbership Mo. 74 GIN: 07277318

ForNangia & Co LLP
ICAl Firm Registration Nal60

¥
o
o
E2d

M P Chitale & Co.
gred Accountards
irm Registralion iNo. 1G1851W

{4 UL\V(&Q

Vikas Gupta Murtuza Vajihi
Membership MNo. 07687 Membership No. 112585
Place Noida Place: Mumbai

Dala: May 22, 2018 Date: May 22, 2013




SORM IRDAGI-TR
msurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
(Assets, Liabilities, and Solvency Margin of General Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016
TABLE !
STATEMENT OF LIABILITIES: MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
As at Mar 31, 2018

Name of insurer: Max Bupa Healih Insurance Company Limited '
Registration Number; 145

Date of Registration: February 15, 2010
Classification: Business within India/ Total Business

(All amounts in Rupees of Lakhs)

Reserve Gross Reserve Net Reserve
Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR} ... (a) 37,733 29,396
Premium Deficiency Reserve (PDR) .... {h} - -
Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) .... (¢ )=(a)+(h) 37,733 29,396
Qutstanding Claim Reserve (other than IBNR Reserve) ... (d) 1,954 1,479
IBNR Reserve ... (e) £ 450 3,741
Total Reserves for Technical Liabilities .... {f) = {c )={d}+(e} 44,137 34,616

Ceriification

{1) Certification from Statutory Auditor

| certify tivat the above statement represents the liabilities of the insurer which have been determined in the
manner prescribed- in the Insurance Regulatory and Deveilopment Authority of India (Assets, Liabilities and
Sclvency Margin of General Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016 and the amounts of such liabilities are fair
and reasopable. | also further certify that the outstanding claims reserves that are estimated using statistical

methods, PDR and IBNR Reserves in the statement above have been determined by the Paneil Actuary and her
certificate is furnished below.

Qualifications (in regard o the determination of lfabilities) ; Nil

tor Nangia & Co LL.P ~~far M P Chitaie & Co.
ICAI Firm Registration No, 002391C hartered Accountants
iCAl irrr(\iej]istration No. 10185 1W
TS kwi\ll
Vikas Gupta Murtuza Vajihi :

Membearship No. (768 Membership No. 112555
Place: Nolda Place: Mumbat
Date: May 22, 2018 Date’ May 22, 2018

{2} Certification from the Panel Actuary

| ceriify that, i have checked the data fo the best of my ability and | am satisfied that the data is consistent,
reliable and compiete. | also further cerlify that the outstanding claims reserves that are estimated using
statistical methods, PDR and [BNR reserves in the siatement above have bzen determined using aciuarial
principles and in the manner prescribed in the Insurance Regulatory Devulopment Authority of India (Assets,
Liabiliies and solvency Margin of General Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016. These reserves, estimated as
on the 31st Day of March of 2018 represent, in my opinian, a fair reflection of {he expeacted future experience.

Qualifications: Mil Panel Actuary

Name of insurer: Max Bupa Health Insurance Co. Ltd. %M_g_ﬁwu :

Piace: Bengaluru Hema WNalini Ramakrishnan, FIA|
Date: May 22, 2018 Membership No.74




(3) Certification by Principal Officer

[ certify that

{a) Fult and accurate particulars of every policy and claim have been furnished io the Panel Actuary, Ms. Hema
Malini Ramakrishnan for the pumpose of the determination of Technical Resarves as on the 3ist Day of March of
2018

{b) The Data provided to the Panel Actuary reconciles with the Audited Financiels as al 51st Day of March of
2018

{¢) The Panel Actuary has been made aware of all the information pertaming to underwriting, claims and
reinsurance policies and practices foliowed by the insurer.

Qualifications : Nil Principal Officer, CEO & MD

Name of Insurer: Max Bupa Hezlth Insurance Co Ltd. ;
Place: New Delhi Ashizh WMehrotra
Date: May 22, 2018 DIN: 07277318

(4) Certification by Chief Financial Officer
I certify that the UPR has been detennined as per the extant provisions of the Authority

Qualifications: Nil Chief Financis! Oficer
L

Name of insurer: Max Bupa Health insurance Co. Ltd "
Place: New Delhi Rahul Ahuja
Date: May 22, 2018



FORM IRDAL-Gi-ztt
Insurance Regulatory and Developr <t Authority of India
{Assets, Liabilities, and Soivency Margin of General Insurance Business) Regulations, 2016
TABLE |
STATEMENT OF SOLVENCY MARGIN: MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANGE COMPANY LIMITED
As at Mar 31, 2018

Name of Insurer: Max Bopa Heailh Insurance Company Limited
Rewistralion Number: 145

Date of Regislration: Fesruary 15, 2010

Clussification: Business within india/ Total Businass

TABLE [A: REQUIRED SOLVENCY MARGIN BASED QN NET PREMIUM AND NET INCURRED CLLAIMS

{Ad amounts in Rupees of Laihs)

Hem Mo. Line of Busingss Gmfss Ne_t Gross I?cum!d Net Em.:urmd RSM1 RSM2 RSM Factor A | Factor B
Premium | Premiun Claims Claims.
1} 2} {3} 4) (5} (6) {7 8] [E]] (10} an
G1 Fire - - - - - - 8.50 .50
02 Marine Carqo - - - - - - - 60 0.6
03 Marne - Cther than ivarine Carge - - - - - - - 0.580 0.55
04 Mator - - - . - - - 0.75 0.73
g5 Engineering . - - - - - - 0.50 0.50
6 Aviation - . - - - - - 0.50 0.50
g7 Liahility - - - o - - - 0.78 0.75
08 Health 75,447 58,774 37,557 33,602 11,755 8,671 11,755 075 0.75
49 Miscellznegus - - - - - - 0.70 0.7G
Total 75,447 53,774 37,557 28,902 11,755 3,671 11,755

JABLE IB: AVAILABLE SOLVENCY MARGIN AND SOLVENCY RATIO

Name of insurer: Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
Registration Number: 145

Date of Registration” Februery 10, 2010

Clazsification: Busingss valhin India/ Total Business

{All amounis in Rupees of Lakhs}

1) RN {2) {3)
| iterm No, DESCRIFTION Amount
(A} Paitryholderts Funds o Zobra ) ¢t
Avuilable Assets [as per Form IRDAI-GI-TA) o
Deduct:
2} Current Liabilities as per BS 5,220
G Provisions as per BS 29,338
(2} Gther Liabilities -
(E) Excass in Poiicyfipider's Funds (A)-[B)<C )-{D) 1,957
Shureholder's Funds
(F} Available Assets 44,547
Deduol:
[ Othar Liabilities 21,717
{H} Exsass in Shargholder's Fends {F)-{G) 22,830
{1} Tl DASM (E} = (k1) 24,787
{Jj Total RSM 11,755
3] Solvency Ratio (Total ASM/Tetal RSM) 2.11

Certificatiom
We, the Siatutory Audiors, harely cerify that the above stztements have been prepared it anrnrdance with the Section G4VA of the msurance Act, 1936, and he smounts
mentiored herain are e 10 the best of our knowiedye.

for Nangia & Co LLF
ICA! Firm Registration No,

r ¥ P Chitale & Co.
Chariered Accourtants

Pluce: Noda
Dale: Mey 22. 2018

OIN. G727 1348

Dale. May 22 2018

ICA) Firmﬁegi‘_tralio No. 10188 1w

(e "Uﬁwv

A
Lifrtoza Viithi
Membershin No 112555

Place. Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2018

Panel Actuary

Hema Malini Ramokeishnan, FIAL
Membership No.74

Date: May 22, 2018

[

Chief Finanicial Ofiicer
Rahul Ahuja

Date: May 22, 2013



MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE CONMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTI*ATION WiTH IRDA: FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE 16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2018

A. BACKGROUND

: B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a}

Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited {"The Company") was incorporated in India

on 51 September, 2008 and received the Certificate of Commencement of Business on 237
Decernber 2008.

The Company is a joint venture between Max Indis Limited and BupaSingapore FHolding Pie,
Singapore

The Company underwrites primarily Health Insurance business which ncludes Personal
accident and Critical iliness.

The Company obtained reguiatory approval to undertake Health Insurance business on 15"
February 2010 from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI)

under section 3(2A} of the Insurance Act, 1938. The Company had started sefling Policies in
March 2010.

2asis of Preparation of Financial Statemenis

The accompanying financial statemenis are prepared and presented under the historical
cost convention, unless otherwise stated, and on accrual basis of accounting, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in India (indian GAAPF). The Company has
prepared the financial statements in compliance with the accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read logether with paragraph 7 of the
Comnpanies {Accounts) Amendments Rules 2016 as amended and Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules 2016 and in accotdance with the provisions of the Insurance
Act, 1938 (amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendmerit) Act, 2015), insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority Act, 1993, and the regulations framed there under, various
circulars issued by the IRDA] and the practices prevailing within the insurance industry in
India. Accounting policies applied have been consistent with previous vear except where

differential treatment is required as per new pronouncements made by the regulatory
authorities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAPR requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounis of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
fiabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Althiough these estimates are based on the
management's hest knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainiy about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future pericds.




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDA: FEBRUARY 15, 2015
SCHEDULES FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{c) Revenue Recognition
{i) Premium income

Premium (net of Service tax and GST) is recognized as income on the commeancement
of risk after adjusting for unearned premium {unexpired risk).Any subsequent revision or
cancellation of premiums are accounted for in the year in which they occur.

Unearned Premium Reserve

Uneamed Premium Reserve (UPR) means an amount representing that part of the
premium written (net of reinsurance ceded) which is attributable and to be allocated to
the succeeding accounting periods. In accordance with IRZAI circuiar dated April 4,
2016 reserve for unexpired is calculated at 50% of the net premium of preceding twelve
months.

Premium Deficiency

Premium Deficiency Reserve means the reserve held in excess of the unearned
premium reserve, which allows for any expectation that the unsarned premium reserve
will ba insufficient to cover the cost of claims and related expenses incurred during the
period of unexpired risk. Computation of unexpired premium risk for the purpese of
premium deficiency is based on the 1/365 method. Assessment of expected claim cost
and related expenses is certified by the Appointed/Panal Actuary in accordance with
IRDAI (Assets, Liabilities and Solvency margin of General Insurance Business)
Regulation, 2016.

(i} Reinsurance ceded
Reinsurance oremium ceded is accounted in the year in which the risk commences and
over the pariod of risk in accordance with the treaty arrangement with the reinsurers.
Any subsequent revision to, refunds or cancellations of premium are recognized in the
year it which they occur.

(i) Commission on Reinsurance Premium

Commission on reinsurance ceded is recognized as income on ceding of reinsurance
premium.

Profit commission under reinsurance treaties, wherever applicable, is recognized as
income in the year of final determination of the profits and as intimated by the Reinsurer.

{iv}) interest / Dividend Income

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis. Dividend income is recognized when the
right to receive the dividend is established.

(v} Premium/discount on purchase of investments

Accretion of discount and amortization of premium relating to debt securities is
recognized over the holding/maturily period on a constant yield to mafurity method




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH [RDA: ¥BRUARY 15, 2010

SCHEDLULES

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(e}

{vi}

Profit/Loss on Saie/Redemption of lnvestments

Profit and Loss on sale/redemption of investments, being the difference between sale
cansideration/redemption values and carrying value of investments (i.e weighted
average value) is credited or charged to Revenus orfand Profit and Loss account as
applicable. The profitioss on sale of investment includes accumuiated changes in the
fair value previously recognized in 'Fair Value Change Account’ in respect of a particular
security. Sale consideration for the purpose of realised gainfloss is net of
brokerage and taxes, if any, and excludes interest received on sale.

Acquisition Cost of Insurance Coniracts

Acquisition costs are those costs that vary witn, and are giimaniy related o the acquisition
of new and renewal of insurance contracts viz. commission, policy issue expenses, eic.
These costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Premium received in advance

Premium received in advance represents premium recsived in respect of thoss policies
issued during the year where the risk commences subsequent {o the balance sheet date.

Claims/Benefits Incurred ,

Claims incurred comprises of claims/benefis pald, change in esiimated liability for
outstanding claims, change in estimated Hability for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)
and claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER) and specific settiement costs
comprising legal and other directly attributable expenses.

Frovigion is made for estimated value of outstanding claims/henefits at the Balance Sheet
date net of claims recoverable from reinsurance. Such provision is made on the basis of the
ultimate amounts that are likely to be pald on 2ach claim/enafits, established by the
management in light of past sxperience and progressively modified for changes as
appropriate, on avaitability of further information and include claim settlement costs likely to
be incuired to settle cuistanding claims.

Claims/benefits (net of amounts receivable from reinsurers/coinsurers) are recognized on
the date of intimation based on estimates from insured in the respective revenue accounts

IBNR and IBNER

The estimated fiability for claims inctirred but not reported (IBNR) and claims incurrsd but
not enough reported (IBNER) is estimaied by the Appointed/Panel Actuary in compliance
with guidelines issued by [RDAI vide circular No. T1/IRDA/ACTL/IBNR/2005-06 dated June
8, 2005 and ALSM Reguiation 2016 with applicable provisions of Actuarial Practice
Standards 21 issued by the Institute of Actuaries of india. The Appointed/Panel Aciuary
uses generally accepied actuarial methods for each product category as considered
appropriate depending upon the availability of past data.

IBNR reserves are provisions for claims that may have been incurred during the accounting
pariod but have not been reported or claimed. The IBNR provision also includes provision,
for claims that have been incurred but are not enough reporied (IBNER). The provision for
[BMR and IBNER is based on actuarial estimate duly cerlifiad by the Appo'ntpd/Panel
Actuary of the Company.




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRAT®)N WITH IRDA: FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{g)

Provision is made for estimated value of oulstanding ciaims which have not been reporied to
the Company at the Baiance Sheet date nel ¢f reinsurance, and other recoveries. Such
provision is made on the basis of the ulimate amounts that are likely to be paid on each
claim, established by the management in light of past experience and progressively modified
for changes as appropriate, on availability of further information and include claim settlement
costs likely to be incurred to settie outstanding ciaims

Allocation of lnvestment Income

investment income earned on policyholders’ investments funds at Balance Sheet date have
been credited © Revenue Account and Invesiment income earned on shareholders’
investments funds at balance sheet date have been gredited to Profit & Loss Account.

Investment income which 1s not direcily identifiable has been allocated on the basis of the
ratio of directly attributable investment income earmed on shareholders’ investments funds
and policyhalders’ investments funds.

Further, investment income across segments within the Revenue account has also been
allocated on the basis of segment-wise gross written premium.

‘nvestments

Investments are made and accounted for in accordance with the Insurance Act,
1938,insurance Regulatory & Development Authority (lInvesiment) Regulations, 2000& 2018
as amended and various other circuiars/notifications issued by the IRDA in this context from
iime {o time.

Investments are recorded at cost including acquisition charges {such as brokerage, transfer
charges. stamps etc} if any and exclude interest accrued up to the date of purchase.

Debt securities, including Government securities are considsered as ‘held to maturity’ and
accoidingly stated at historical cost subject to amorisation of premium or accretion of

- discount on constant yield to maturity basis in the Revenue Accourt and in the Profit and

Loss Account over the period of maturity/holding.

Investment that are earmarked, are allocated to policyholder's or shareholder's as
applicable; balance investment are segregated at Shareholder's level and policyholder's
ievel notionally based on Policyholder's fund and Sharehoicer's fund at the end of the year.

l.isted and actively {raded securities are stated at fair value as at the Balance Sheet date
being the lowest of the last quoted closing price of the stock exchanges where the securities
are listed. Unrealized gainflosses due o change in fair value of listed securilies is
credited/debited to ‘Fair Value Change Account'.

Lnlisted Securities are stated at cost.

The realized gain or joss on the listed and actively traded securities and mutual funds is the
difference between the sale consideration and the carrying cost as on the date of sale,
determined on a first in first out basis and includes the accumulated changes in the fair
value previously taken to the fair value change account, in respect of the particular security;
such loss or gain is transferred to Revenue account orfand Profit and Loss Account as
applicable on the trade date.

The Company, at each balance sheet date, assesses investments for any impairment ans
necessary provisions are made f.r the same where reqLured




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDA: FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[nvestments in units of Muluai funds are valued at Net Asset Value {NAV) as al Balance

Sheet date. Unrealized gains/losses are credited/debited 1o the Fair Value Change
Account’

Investments maturing within twelve months from the balance sheet datz and invesimenis
made with specific intention (o dispose off within twelve months are classified as Short Term
Investments. Other Investments are classified as Long Term Investmenis.

{i) Fair Value Change Account

‘Fair Value Change Account' represents unrealized gains or lossas due to change in fair
value of traded securities and miutual fund units outstanding at the close of the year. The
balance in the account is considered as a component of policyholder's fund and
shareholder's funds respectively basis on mutuai fund mapped and not available for
distribution as dividend. As per the IRDAI circutar dated January 12 2017 fair value changes
has been bifurcated between shareholder and policyholder.

)] Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Tangibie assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition (including incidental expenses refating to
acqumnon and installation of assets) and expenssas directly attribltablz to bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use, |2ss accumuiated depreciation and impairment
of assets, if any.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straighi-line method as pet
the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of the
following categories of assels, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as
i under, hased on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated
“ usage of the asset, the cperating conditions of the asset and past history of replacarment.

Nature of Fixed Assets Management Useful Life as per the limils
Estimaie of | prescribed in Schedule I} of
Useful Life in|the Companies Act, 2013 in
Years Years

Furniture & Fixture 5 1 10

Infarmation Technology equipment | 3 3

- End User Devices . N

Information Technology equipment | 4 5}

- Servers and Metworks

Office Equipments 5 5

Intangibles (including Software) 4 NA

Leasehold Improvements Lease periad NA

All assets including intangibles individually costing up to Rs 5,000 are fulty depreciated/
amortizad in the year in which they are acquired.

o
nijS
‘O'J




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDA: FEBRJARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(k)

Intangibles

intangible assets compiising software are stated at cost iess amortisation. Significant
expenditure on improvements to software are capitalised when it is probable that such
expenditure will enable the assel to generate future economic benefits in excess of ifs
originally assessed slandards of performance and such expenditure can be measured and
aitributed to the asset reliably. Subsequent expenditures are amortised over the remaining
useful life of original software. Software expenses are amortised using SL.M cver a period of
four years from the date of being ready to use

Capital work in progress

Assets not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at
cost, comprising direct cast and related incidental expenses

impairment of Assets

The carrying values of assets forming part of any cash generating units at Balance Sheet
date are reviewed for impairment atl each Balance Sheet date. If any indication for such
impairment exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated and impairment
loss is recognized, if the carrying amount of those assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and their value in uge, Value in

‘us2 is arrived at by discounting the estimated future cash flows (o their present value based

on appropriafe discount factor. If at the Balance Sheet date there is any indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the
zsset is restatad to that extent.

Taxation

income tax expense comprises current iax (i.e. amount of tax payable on the taxable income
for the period determired in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1981), and dafarred tax
charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences hetween the accounting
income and taxable income for the pariod} Current income tax is the amount expected to be
paid to the tax authorities in accordancs with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax 1s measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacied or substantively
enacted at the Balance sheet date. Deferred {ax assets are recognized only to an exignt that
there is reasonable cerfainty that sufficient future taxable income will he available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. if the Company has unabsorbed
depreciation or carry forwaid tax losses, deferred tax assets are recegnized only if there is
virtual ceitainty supporied by convincing evidence that such deferred tax assets can he
realized against future taxabie profits.

At each balance sheet date the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. it
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain or virtually certain as the case may be that sufficient future tax assets can be

realized

Employee Benefits

Employees' benefits have been recognized in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Accounding Standard 15 (revised 2005)




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION *MTH IRDA: FEBRUARY 15, 2010
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{a} Defined Contribution Plan.

The Company makes iiionthly contributicns to the "Max India Limited Employees
Provident Fund Trust” which is based on a specified percentage of the coverad
employees’ salary. The {und is administered through trustees and the Company's
contribution ihereto is charged lo Revenue Account or Profit and Loss Account as
applicable.

{b) Defined Benefit Plans

a. The liability in respect of Gratuity is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation carried out at the year-end using the Projectzd Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gain and loss are recognized in full in the Revenue Account orfand Profit
and Loss Account as applicable for the year in which they occur. The Company has
a recognized Trust for Gratuity benefits, "Max Bupa Heallh Insurance Lid
Employees’ Group Gratuity Fund” to administer the Gratuity funds. The Trust has
taken master policy with the Max Life Insurance Company Limited" to cover its
liabiliies towards employees Gratuity. The Gratuity obligation recognized in the
Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of the
gratuity fund.

b. The liahility in res'pect of tong term accumulating leave encashment is provided for
on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out at the yearend for iong term
compensated absences using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in full in the Revenue Account orfand Profit and Loss
Account, as applicable for the year in which they occur. Short term compensated
absences are provided for based on estimates. Nor-accumulated compensated
absences are accounted for as and when availed ! encashed.

¢. Deferred compensation, which is a long tenm employee benefit, is provided for
based on the independent actuarial valuation cartied out as at the Balance Sheet
date and charged to Revenue Account or Profit and Loss Account, as applicable
based on services rendered by employess.

(¢} Long term incentive plan

Employee benefit in form of long term incentive plan is another long term employee
benefit. The cost of providing benefit under his plan are determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation at end of each year end using projected unit credit method.
Actuarial yains and losses for the defined benefit plan is recognized in full in the
period in which they occur in {he statement of profit and loss

{m) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to
present{ value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at
the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates. Contingent assets and iiabilities are not recagnized.

A disclosure for a centingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably wi not, require an outflow of resources. When there is z
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{0}

{m

{a)

possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the iikelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20 on ‘Earnings per Share’ issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
india. Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net Profit and Loss for the year
by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net Profit and Loss for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted to (he affects of ail
dilutive potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

lLeases

Lease of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained
by the lessor is classified as Operating Leases. Operating Lease rentals including escalation
are recognized in the Revenue account orfand Profit and Loss account, as the case may be,
on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial recognition: Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Indian Rupees, by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and the foreign
currancy at the date of the transaction.

Conversion: Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate
prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of
historical cosl denominated in a foreign currency, are reportad using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other
similar valuation denominated in a foreign cuirency, are translated uvsing the exchange rate
a{ the date when such value was determined.

Exchange differences: Exchange differences are recognised as income or as expenses in
the period in which they arise.

Allocation of Operating Expanses

The Company has Board approved policy for allecation and apporlionment of expenses of
management amongst various business segmenis as required by IRDAI (Expernses of
Management of Insurers transacting General or Health insurance Business) Regulations,
2016. The expenses are segregated between those which can be directly atiributed to a
particular business segment and those which cannot be so attributed. Operating expenses
which are directly attributable to a particular business segment and identifiable as such are
allocated directly to that segment. Operating expenses which are not directly identifiabis to
any business segment, but which are attached to specific functions are appaortioned based
on the rmost suitable lever for apportionment for respective functions, Operating expenses
which are not attached to specific functions are apportioned based on the most logical
available lever of apporticnment.
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{r)

(t

(i)

(iii)

Rationale of Expenses allocation between Revenus Account and Profit & Loss
Account

£xpenses pertaining to Policyholders have been shown in Revenue Account as per the limit
prescribed in Expenses of Management Regulations 2016 and axcess over the limit has
been debited in the Profit & Loss Accourit.

Service Tax & GST

Service Tax & GST collected is considered as a liability against which Service Tax & GST
paid for eligible inpuis services or goods, to the extent claimable, is adjusted and the net
liability is remitted to the appropriate authority as stpulated. Unutilized credits, if any, are
carried forward for adjustment in subsequent periods. Service Tax & GST paid for eligible
input services not recoverable by way of credits are recognized in the Revenue account as
expense.

Receipts and Payments Account

Receipts and Payments Account is prepared and reporied as per AS-3 Cash flow
statements using the Direct Method, in conformity with para 2 2 of the Master Circular.
on Preparation of Financial Statements - General Insurance Business dated Qctober 5,
2012, issued by the IRDA. .

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Statemeni of Receipts and Payments
include cash and cheques in hand, deposits with banks, bank balances, liquid mutual
funds and other short term investments with original maturity of three months or less
which are subject {o insignificant risk of changes in valus.

The components of Cash and Cash Equivalents are presented with reconciliation of the
amounts in its Cash Flow Statement with the equivalent items reported in the Balancs
Sneet.
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~

C. NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS
1. Contingent Liabilities
(Rs. ‘000)
Particulars As at As at
o 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Partly Paid up Investments - -
Claims, other than those under Poiicies, not acknowledged as Debts - -
by the Insurer
Underwriting Commiiments Outstanding - -
Claims, under policies, not acknowledged as debts* 1,63,466 79,112%
Guarantees given by or on behalf of the Insurer - -
Statutory Demands / Liabilities in Dispute, Not provided for - -
Penalty raised by Income tax departmeant against assessment af 54,818 -
income Tax Retumn filled for Financial Years 2012-13 and 2013-14,
subject to appeal.
Reinsurance Obligations to the Extent Not provided for in Accounts - e
Total 2,48,284 79,112
* Includes compensation raised by policyholders against rejected claims
**Regrouped from Claims, other than those under Policies, not acknowiedged as Debts by the Insurer to Claims,
under policies, not acknowledged as debts.
2. cAgiuarial Assumptions
Thes Company's Panel Actuary has determined valuation assumptidns in respect of ‘Reserve for
Lesivpired Risl” and ‘Claims tncurred But Mot Reported’ (IBNR) amounting to Rs. 37.41 crore {Previous
vezr Rs. 36.08 crore) that confarm with Regulstions issued by the IRDAI and professional guidance notes
' ‘Nssuf-d oy the Institute of Actuaries of India. ¢
- i As at March 31, 2018, the Company has made a provision of Rs. O 53 crore (Previous year
Rs.1.07 crore) towards provider reconciliation reserve based on actuarial estimaies and the
sama is inctuded as a part of IBNR reserves.
ii. 3 at March 31, 2018, the Company has rmade a provision of Rs.16.22 crore {(Previous year
Rs 15.33 orore ) towards figation reserve based on actuarial estiimates and the same is
included az 2 part of IBNR reserves.
3. Encumbrances on Asgels
The assats of the Company are free from all encumbrances. The Company has all assets within India.
4. Estimated Amount of Commitments made and Outsfanding for: -
— {Rs. '000)
Particulars As at As at
.__ 31.03.2018 - 31.03.2017
Loans - -
Investments - -
Fixed Assets (Nat of advanceas) 81,076 57,667
5. Claiirs, less Reinsurance paid to Claimanis are as under®:
(Rs. '000)
In India Qutside India
Class of Businass Year Ended | Year Ended | Year Ended Year Ended
21.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Health 27,28,548 26,55,348 - -
FPersonal Accident 11,039 380 - =
Total ..27.29,587 26,55,728 -

*Excluding claim handling expense
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6. Age-wise Breakup of Claims Cuistanding®:

9.

{(Rs. ‘000)
Ouistanding for more than Outstanding for six months
Class of Business six months or less
As at As af As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
| Health 6,010 15,080 1 1,356,746 1,564,033
Personat Accident 180 . 5,981 1,302
Total 6,200 15,080 1,41,737 1,685,335

*Excluding IBNR provision,

There are no claims settled and remaining unpaid for 2 period of more than six months.

Number of Claims intimated, disposed of and pending:

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Health Personal Toial Healili | Personal | Total
Accident Accident
Claims pending at the beginning 2,677 4 2,681 2,132 - 2,132
Claims intimated 83,320 126 83,446 72,442 17 1 72,459
Claims paid 76,296 21 76,217 64,569 2| 64,871
Claims rejected 7,721 104 7,825 7,028 11 7,032
Cieims pending at the closing 1,930 5 1,985 2,677 41 2,881 |
Ageing of Pending Claims
- As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Paj’%icufars Health Personal Total Health Parscnal Total
g Accideant Accident
30 days 1,853 3 1,856 2,418 31 2419
3G'days to 6 Months 126 1 127 212 1 213
8 ranths tc1 year 1 1 2 41 - 41
1 year to b years - - - 8 - 8
5 years and above - - - - -1 -
Total 1,980 5 1,985 2,677 4. 2,681 ]
{a} Premium less Reinsurance Written During the Year:
. (Rs. ‘000)
Class of Business In India Outside India
Year ended Year ended Yaar ended Year ended
31.02.20:18 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 21.03.2017
Health 57,98,471 56,14,4€61 - -
Personal Accident 78,879 24,700 - -
Total 58,77,350 56,39,161 _ - -
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10. Exient of Risk Retained and Reinsured:

Extent of risk retained and reinsured with respect to gross written premium is set out below:

Year Ended 31.03.2018 (Rs.’000)
Class of Business Gross Premium Risk Retained Risk Reinsured
" Amount % age Amount % age
Health 74,32,655 57,98,471 78.01% 16,34,184 21.99%
Personal Accident 1,112,060 78,879 | 70.39% 33,181 29.61%
Year Ended 31.03.2017 (Rs.’000)
Ciass of Business Dli:?l?:m Risk Retained Risk Reinsured
T Amount % age Amount % age

Health 59,09,359 56,14,461 95.01% 2,94,898 4.99%

| Pefsonal Accident 29,979 24,700 82.39% 5,279 17.61%

. As";‘%ér IRDAI Master Circular on unclaimed amount of policyhoiders dated 25" July 2017. °

Fortn A: Statement showing the Age-wise Analysis of the Unclaimed Amount of the Policyhoiders

as on March 31, 2048

4

{Rs. in Lakhs)

" Particulars

Total
Amount

Age-wisa Analysis (in months)

7-12

13-18

19-24

25-30

31-36

36-120

Claims setiled but not paid
to the policyholders /
heneficiaries due to any
reasons except under
litigation from the
policyholders / beneficiaries.

1.73
()

]
[

Gl

~—

)

(-} (-)

{-)

Sum due to the
policyhiolders / beneficiaries
on maturity or otherwise

Any Excess collection of the
premiuri / {ax or any other
charges which is refundable
to the policyholders /
beneficiaries either as terms
of conditions of the policy or
as per iaw or as may be
directed by the Authority but
not refunded so far

Cheques issuad but not
encashed by the

policyholder/ beneficiaries

215.10
(300.56)

85.31%#%
{(148.41)

19.91°
(11.48)

459"
(7.42)

2.09*
(7.44)

6,35
(12.48)

1.47%
(19.85)

92.46"
{93 48)

Figures in brackets are for previous year,
* These are stale cheques disclosed in 'Unclaimed amount of policyholders'finsured’ in Schedule-13.

# Include cheques issued amounting to Rs. 78.33 Lakhs {previous y«ar F's. 123.39 Lakhs) which are within the
validity period Lut not yet presented for payment by the pdlicyholders/insu.-.d.
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Form C- Details of Unclaimed Amount with Investinent Income
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Financial Year Financial

_ 2017-18 Year 201617
Opening Balance Wi 198.72
Add: Amount transferred to unclaimed amount i 48.76 §4.59

Add: Cheques issued out of the unclaimed amount but not - -
encashed by the policyholders {only stale cheques)

Add: Investment Income on unclaimed fund 12.83 15.52
Less: Amount of claims paid during the vear 8§2.92 101.66
Less: Amount transferred to SCWF(net of claims paid in respect - -
of amount transferred earlier)
Closing Balance of Unclaimed Amount* 155.83 177.17

*Separate Fixed Deposits has been eammarked for payment of unclaimed amount of policyholder disclosed
under head Schedule 12- Advances and Other Assets. This amount includes Interest on unclaimed amount
of Policyhclders amounting to Rs.19.07 Lakhs {previous year Rs.11.63 Lakhs).

12. Pramium Deficiency Reserve

The Panel Actuary has reviewed the Unearned premium reserve (UPR) posted in. the Financial
statements against the estimated liability of the Company under unexpired ohiigations (mr‘lur‘mg claim,
claim ;m,iaied expenses -and unexpired loyally points) towards policyhniders (URR) for ali business
segmgnts The UPR provided in the financials is sufficient to the cover the URR at company ievel thus:
no premium deficiency reserve has been created. '

13. Investments
1] ¥
Therg are no contracls outstanding in relation to Purchases where deliveries are pending and Sales
wherz, payments are overdue respectively. All the investments are made in accordance with Insurance
Act, ;538 and RDAI (Investment) Regulations, 2016 and are performing assets. The Company does not
have any invesiment in Real Estate as at March 31, 2018 or March 31, 20617,

44, Managerial Remuneration

The details of remuneration of MD & CEQ as per the terms of appointment are as under;

(Rs. ‘0G0}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
| Balaries & Allowances 30,945 33,750
Coniribution to Provident and other funds 1,264 828
Perquisites 184 203
Total N 44,293 34,781

QOut of the above Rs. 15,000 thousand {previous year Rs, 15,000 thousand) remuneration for Managing
Director has been charged to Revenue Accounts and balance has been transferred to Profit and Loss
account. Expenses fowards gratuity and leave encashment provisions are determined actuarialiy on an
overall Company basis annually and accordingly have not been considered in the above information.
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The details of remuneration of Key Management Persons as per guidelines issued by IRDAI vide Ref. na.
IRDA/F&A/GDLICG/100/05/2016 dated May 18, 2016 and as par the terms of appointment of Company
are as under:

(Rs. 000}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
o e W7*31.03.2018 31.63.2017 |
Salaries & Allowances . ] 1,11,821 80,971
Contribution to Provident and other funds N . 4,489 3,497
Perquisites 544 306
Total 4,156,664 84,774

Expenses towards graiuity and leave encashment provisions are determined actuariaily on an overall
Company basis annually and accordingly have not been considered in tha above information.

15. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

{Rs. ‘GOG)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2018 31.63.2017
Software License Fees 22,727 24,798
Traveling 850 728
Sitling Fees 1,699 1,600
Menibership and Subscription 531 G869
Toi{%} ' 25,507 27,792

16. Opeﬁéting Lease Commitmentis

The £ompany has taken on lease office premises under various agreements with various expiration
dates-extending up to nine years. Lease pay'ments made under operating lease agreements have been
fully gscognized in the books of accounts. The lease rental charged under operating leases during the
current year arnd maximum ouligation on such leases at the balance sheet date are as follows:

: - {Rs. "000)
Particulars o T As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Payable not later than one year 83,720 ; 87,809
Payable later than one year and not later than five vears 2,29,899 2,80,679
Payable later than five years 10,486 36,990
Totai 3,24,105 4,05,568

Aggregate lease rentals charged to Revenue Accounts is Rs. 814,185 thousand (pravious year Rs, 86,289
ihousand) and there are no sub leases.

. Foraign Cuirency Exposures

Foreign cuirency exposures which are not hedged as at the Balance Sheet date are.

) - (Rs. '000)
Farticulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Payable in USD 200 -
Payable in GBP 493 243




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WiTH IRDA: FEBRUARY 15, 2018
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. Related Parties & Transactions:

i As per the Accounting Standard {AS) 18 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’, ihe related pariies of the
Company are as follows:

SN | Deseription of Relationship Mamie of Party L
{(a) | Holding Company Max India Limited
m{b) Fellow Subsidiaries Antara Senior Living Limited
| Antara Gurgaon Senior Living Limited
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited
Max Ateev Limited
Max UK Limited, UK
Max Skill First Limited
iax One Distribution and Services Limited
Pnarmax Corporaiion Limited
{c} | Significant Influence Bupa Singapora iHoldings Pte Limited
(d) | Key Management Personnel (KMP) M. Ashish Mehrotra, Managing Director and CEO
Mr. Rahut Ahuja, Chief Financiat Officer
i ) Mr. Rajat Sharma, Company Secratary

¥ +

(i) & Details of transacion with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2018 are giver beiow:

. : . {Rs. ‘500)
H Foi the year For the year
S.no- 1 Transactions !;::e of the Related Description snged ended
i 21.02.2018 | 31.03.2017
¢ 1 Legal & Professional Holding i
1+#.1 Charges Max India Limited campany 4,05,525 -
Legal & Professionai | Max One Distribution Feliow
2 Charges And Services Ltd Subsidiariss - 424
! Fefiow
3 Training £xpenses Max Skifl First Limited | Subsidiaries 59,198 50,800
Fellow
4 Ciner expenses Mant Skill First Limited Subsidiaries _ “ 850
Reimbursement of Bupa Singapore | Significant
5 expenses Holdings Pte Limited influence ~ - 184 |
Mr, Ashish Menhretra,
MD & CEO Key
Employee's Mr. Rahul Ahuja , CFO | Management
B Remuneration Mr. Rajat Sharma, CS _ | Personnel 72,849 62,637
lzsuance of Shara Holding
8 capital Max India Limited coimpany _ - 1.42,800
Issuance of Share Bupa Singapore SignHicant
9 capital Holdings Pte Limited influence - _1,37,200
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{ith

Details of outstanding balances with related pariies as at ended March 34, 2018 are given below:

{Rs. '000)
S.no Quistanding Name of the Related Description As at As at
’ Balances Party 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Holding
1 | Other payables Max India Limited cornpany 24,300 -
Other receivables/ Fellow
2 | (pavables) Max Skill First Limited Subsidiaries 300 {16,996}

49. Segment Information

a} Business Segments

The Company's primary reportable segments are identified in accordance with the Insur

ance Regulatory

and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor's Report of Insurance
Companies) Regulations 2002. Segment revenue and segment results have been incorporated in the
financial statements.

Py

(Rs. 000))
Year ended 31.03.2018
- Particulars Health Personal Accident Unallocated Total
Segmental Revenue 57,038,424 55,118 2,99,474 60,538,016
Segmenta! Result (2,51,712}) {23,821) 13,77,187 11,01,654
Ssgmenta! Liabilities 35,01,965 12,086 21,24,818 56,48,867
Segmental Assets 43,800 - 81,64,478 82,08,376
(Rs. '000)
§ Year ended 31.03.2017
Pardiculars Health Personal Accidant Unailocatad Totai
‘ Segmental Revenue 54,32,531 10,280 3,36,945 57,79,756
Segmental Rasull {5.28,198) (13,701) 13,92,628 8,50,729
Segmental Liabilities 33,85,849 23,443 15,37,558 49,26,950
i Segmentat Assets 50,500 - 72,09,123 72,589,623

by Geographical Segment

Since the Company's entire business is conducted within India, there is no reportable Geographical
Segmentation Tor the year.
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20. Employee Benefits
A. Defined Coniribution Plans - Provident Fund

During the year the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Revenue andfor Profit and
Loss Account:

- {Rs., ‘003

Provident Fund Year Ended | Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2617

Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 45,853 38,214

8. Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation or death of an employes. The
aforesald liability is calculated on the basis of actuarial valualion as per the projected unit credit
method. The Gratuity plan has been funded through a policy taken from Max Life Insurance Company
Limited. Disclosure as per AS-15 (Revised) on ‘Employee Benefits’ is as under.

i. Assumptions Used:

‘Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.20617
'E-f}’iflortality Indian Assured Lives indian Assured Lives |
i ' Mortality (2006-38) Uit Mertality (2006-08) UM,
¢ Interest/Discount Rate (Per Annum) 6.95% p.a. 8 70% p.2.
~Rate of increase in compensation 7.00% p.a. 7.00% p.a.
Withdrawal rate: 40% for frontiine staff 40% for frontline staff
and 20% for other staff and 20% for other staff

ii. Changes in Present value of benefit obligation during the vear:

- (Rs. ‘000}
Barticulars T TV Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Praseni value of obligaticns at the beginning of the vear 36,685 27,312
Current Service Cost 3,204 7,200
interest cost 1 2,328 1,806
Benefits Paid (3,867) (4,779)
Actuarial loss/{gain) on cbligation 2,614 5,146
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture - -
Present value of cbligations at end of year 45,664 36,685
iti. Change in Fair Value of Pian Assets during the year: .
. {?s. ‘000) o
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
o 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of year o 27,671 17,3335
Coniritbutions 9,014 10,481
Expected Return on Plan Assets 2,026 1,464
Actuarial gain/(ioss) on obligation (292} 3,170
Benefits Paid {3,867) (4,779)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year 34,552
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iv. Amounts recogrized in Revenue orfand Profit & Loss Account:
(Rs. '0G00)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Current Service Cost . 8,804 7,200
interest Cost 2.328 1,806
Expected Return on Plan Assets o (2026) {1,463)
Actuarial {Gainjfloss on obligation. _ 2,906 1,975
Amount recognized in Revenue or/and Profit & Loss Account 2112 9,618
v, Amounts recognized ih Balance Sheet:
N (Rs. “000)
Particuiars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Present value of obligations at end of Year £6,664 36,685
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of Year 34,552 27,671
Funded Status (Deficit)/Surplus {12,112) (9,014)
Net Asset/(Liabiiity) recognized in the balance sheet” _{12,112) {9,014)
* The DBO as on 31 March, 2018 includes unsettled gratuity benefit payment.
vi. Baiance Sheet Racongciliation:
o o {Rs. ‘000;
Particulars . Year Ended Year Ended
£ L 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Y Dpening Net Liability/(Asset} 9,014 9,977
Expenses recognized in Profit & Loss Account 12,112 9,518
| Contribution Paid i (9014) " (10,481)
| ‘Acauisiticn/Business Combination/Divestifure - -
“losing Net Liability/(Asset) B 12,112 9,014
#%a the Gratuity Fund is:managed by Max Life Insurance Company Limited, details of investments
ara not available with the Company.
C. Accrued Leave:

i

The Company has recognized Hhability lowards cost of accumulating compensated absences
Disclosure as per AS-15 {Revised) on 'Employee Benefits' is as under;

Assumptions Used:

Earticuiars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

“Mortality

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2008-08) Ul

Indian Assured l.ives
lviortality (2006-08) Ult,

| Interest/Discount Rate {Per Annum)

6.95% p.a.

6.70% p.a.

Rate of increase in compensation

7.00% p.a.

7.00% p.a.

"Withdrawal rate:

40% for frentline staff
arid 20% ior other staff

40% for frontline staff
and 20% for other staff |
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HR

iv.

V.

Changes in Present value of benefit obligation during the year:

(Rs. "000)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Defined Benefit Ohligation, Beginning of year 25477 25,415
Current Service Cost ] 9,638 10.858
interest Cost B ~ 1,475 1,476
Actual Plan Participants’ Contributions o 1 - -
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses o o ) " {5,051) {2,153)
| Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture - -
Actual Benefits Paid (6,911) (10,119}
Past Service Cost - -
Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - -
Loss / (Gains) on Curtailments - -
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements - -
Definad Bernefit Obligation at end of year 24,629 25,477
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the yeai:
_ {Rs. 0100}
Particulars Year Snded Year Ended
) 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Fair Valug of Plan Assets at beginning of year , ~ -l -
Expected Return on Plan Assets ' ' - -
Actual Enterprise's Contributions - -
Aciual Plan Participants' Contributions - -
Actuzl Benefits Paid . -
Actuarial Gains/{Losses) . - -
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture - -
Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates - -
Liabiiities Extinguished on Settlements i - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year s - -
Amounts recognized in Revenue orfand Profit & Loss Account:
{Rs. '000)
Particulars Year Ended Yoar Ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
urrant Service Cost 9,639 10,858
Interest Cost 1,475 1,476
Expected Return on Plan Assets _ - -
Net Actuarial (Gain)/loss (5050} |  (2/183)
Amouni recognized in Revenue orfand Profit & Loss Account 6,064 10,181
Amounis recognized in Balance Sheet:
{Rs. ‘000}
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
- 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Defined benefit obligations (DBO) 24,629 25,477
Fair Vaiue of Plan Assets at end of Year . - -
Funded Status (Deficit)/Surplus . 24,629 25,477
Unreccgnized Past Service Cost / (Credit) ]
Unrecognised Asset due to Limit in Para 53(B)
_ Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the balance shee' 24,629
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vi.

0,

Balance Sheet Reconciliation:

Long term Incentive Benefits

- (Rs. ‘000)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Opening Net Liability/{(Asset) . 25,477 25,415
Exgcenses recognized in Revenue orfand Profit & Loss Account 8,064 10,180
_Actual Benefits Paid . _j: {8,911) (10,118)
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture o - -
. Cloging Net Liability/{Asset) o 24,629 25477

The Company has schemes for Long Term Performance incentive plan & Guaranteed Payout plan. -~

The Company has determined the liability on the basis of Actuartal valuadion as under:

Amounts recognized in Balance Sheet:

o {Rs. ‘000)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
. 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Defined benefit obiigations (DBO) o 1,985,753 1,42,394
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of Year - -
4 Net Asseff{Liability) recognized in the batance sheet 1,835,753 1,42,394 |

21. Ezwnings Per Share

i

Batii" eamings per equity share have been computed hy dividing net profit (loss} after tax by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

4 Particulars

inRs

Units Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
#:) ProfiY(loss) avaiiabie to equity sharsholder's Rsin '000s 2,28,358 (36,766)
b7 Waighted average of number of equily sheres No. of shares 3,26,090 0,13,803
used in computing basic earnings per share in ‘000s
c. | Ditutad Weighted average of number of equity No. of shares 8,26,000 9,285,000
shares usad n compuiing diluted earnings per in '000s
share.
d. | Nominai Value per share o in s 10 10
e. Béé-é“eafnings per share (a/h) N in R 6.25 (0.94)
£ | Diluted earings per share (aic) T 0.25 10.04)
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22, Disclosures on other work given to Auditor's

Pursuant to clause 7.1 (g) of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by IRDAI on May 18, 2016 the
services of the statutory auditors are disclosed below.

i {Rs.’000)
For the Year For the Year
Name of the Auditor Services Rendered ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Tax Audit fees 150 80
Certification Fees 150 -
Nangia & Co. LLP Transfer Pricing Assessment - 175
: Tax Consultancy 25 -
M.P. Chitalg & Ce. - _ - -
S R.Batliboi & Co.l.LP | Certification Fees {up to Jung 2016) - a3

23. In pursuant to Circular 057 dated 28" March, 2008 issued by {RDAI, following operating expenses
are separately disclosed:

(Rs ‘000)
Particulars Year ended 31.03.2018 Year ended 31.03.2017
Outsourcing Expenses” 4,989,412 13,52,568
Matieting Support 4,18,070 4,058,072
Bus_%iess Development 2,682 3,435

“Outésurcing expenses have been calculated basis on the Outsourcing guidelines issued by IRDAL

24, Expenses of Management

The Bompany had raceived exemption from IRDA under the provisions of Sec 40 ¢ (1) of the Insurance
Act ,%938 read with rule 17 E of the Insurance Rules, 1939. The Exemption was valid for a period of 5
finaniial years starting from financial year 2010-11 1o 2014-15. The company had filed with IRDA for
forbelifance for exceeding the expenses of management over the allowable limit for 2015-16 aleng with a
convifgence plan. As per Circular ne. IRCAIReq./12/124/2016, The Company has transferred Fs
107.77 e for the financial year 2017-18 from Revenue Account o Profit and l.ess account which is in the
axcess of expenses of management over the allowable limut.

25, Sector Wise Business

Disclosure as per Schedule B Part Il Point ¢ (3) of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authornity

of India {preparation of financial statements and auditor's report of insurance companies) reguiations,
2002,

The iotal Gress Written Premiumn for the financial year i Rs.75,44,715 thousands (Previous year
Rs.50,39,337 thousands), out of which the bifurcation of Rural and social sector business is as under:

Business Year ended 31,03.2018 Year ended 31.03.2047
Sector GOPI No of % of GDPI No of % of
{Rs.'000s) Paiicy Policy (Rs.'000s) Policy Policy
Rural 3,596,326 26,469 0.97% 3,686,305 23,548 0.88%
Social 4,582 ~ 2 0.00% 8,022 - 0.00%
The above is compiled on basis of numbers reported to IRDAL
Social Sector ’ Year cstcad Year ended
i 31.03.2078 31.03.2017
Number of lives PN 97,675 1,97,268
3 o
q!? \.\‘f
i ‘New Dot b
[w
& o




MAX BUPA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIGITED
REGISTRATION NO: 145, DATE OF REGISTRATION WITH IRDAL: FEBRUARY 18,
SCHEDUILES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2019

Disclosure as per Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India {Obligations of
insurers to Rural and Social Seciors) Ragulations, 2015 is as under:

Rural Sector
Amount of
Gross Premium Premium Rural Secior | Required % as Compliance with the
for the year procured in Premium as par the above above Regulations
{Rs.'000s) Rural Secier | % to Column Reguiations
{Rs.'000s) {1}
75,44,715 3,96,326 5.25% 3.00% Yes
Social Sector
Number of

Total Business

Lives covered

Social Sector

Reguirad % as per

Compliance with

flives) in the under Sociai Lives as % to the above
Preceding Sector in the the Column Regulafions the above
Financial Year Financial Year 1) Regulations
2017-18
24,00 283 97,675 4.07% 4.00% Yes

28, Micro 8mall and Medium Enterprisas

Ther& i= no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise to which the Company owes dues, which are
out°ian01ng for mure than 45 days during the year ended Marci 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017. This
mformahon as requlred to be disclosed under Micro, Smal and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2008 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

avaifable with tiie Company.
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27. Penal Actions Details by Various Government Authorities

IRDAI circular no O05/IRDAIFEA/CIR/MAY-0S requires disclosure as per given format in respect of
penal actions taken by various Government Authorities,

Amount in Rs. L.akhs
ot Hon-Compliance/ Penalty
Sh Authority Vioia‘iion :enﬂtyi P(;niljty Waived}’l
waraec al Reduced
1 linsurance Regulatory and - - - -
Development Authority (-} {-) (-) (-)
2 Service Tax & Goods and service Tax - - - -
Authorities _ (=) (=) () (=)
3 income Tax Authoiilies - : - -
A ) L ) ()
4 Any Other Tax Authorities - - -
B () {-) (-)
4] Enforcement Directorate / - - - -
Adiudicating Authority / Tribunal or (=) (-) (-} (-}
any Autherity under FEMA
& Registrar of Companies/ NCLT/ CLB/ - - - -
& Department of Corporate Affairs or i-) (-} (-} {)
o any Authority under Companies Act, |
1 2013. B
7 #i Penalty awarded by any Court/ - - - -
4 tribunal for any matter including claim {-) () (-) {-
setiiement but excluding
.4 Compensation
8 ¢ SBecurities and Exchanga Board of - - - -
i India ) ) { ()
9 f Competision Commission of india - - - -
A, (=) (-} (-} {-}
10 | Any other Central/Siate/local - - - -
| Government/ Statutory Authority {-) {-) {-) (-3

Bracket shows numbers related to previous year
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28. Sumwnary of Financial Statements is provided as under:

~ {Rs in Lakhs) L
SN | Particulars . 2017-18 | 20616-17 | 2015416 | 2014-15 | 204314
OPERATING RESULTS
1 | Gross Direct Premiums 75,447 59,393 47,601 37,266 30,885
Z | Net Premium Income (net of 58,774 | 56,352 45,155 35,344 29,621
reinsurance)
3 | Income from Investments (net) 2,995 3,369 2,548 1,795 1,407
4 | Other Income - - - - _
5 1 Tofal Income 81,768 58,761 47,703 37,139 31,028
& | Commission (Net) including 2,267 5,897 4,480 3.220 | 2,788
| brokerage I
7 | Operating Expenses (net of ECM 16,394 15,116 22,123 22,437 22,767
impact)*®
8 | Netincurred claims 28,902 282771 23,402 18,220 14,040
9 | Premium Deficiency - - - (67} 57
10 | Change in unexpired risk reserve 1,188 1,964 5,844 3.820 5,858
11 | Operating Profit/{Loss)* 11,017 8,507 (8.147) (16,501} - {14,478)
NON OPERATING RESULTS
12 | Jotai income under shareholder's {8.733) {8,875} 1,297 1.170 1191
_account (net of expenses) _ |
; 13 |#Profit /{loss) before tax 27284 (3€a: (6,850} (6,331) (13.287)
14 {-Provision for Tax - - - - -
15 [iProfit(Loss) after tax 2,284 (368) (6,850} (9,331) (13,287)
MISCELLANECHIS
18 1 Policyholder's Account:
sa) Total funds 36,573 34,001 Mot applicable being General
______ DiTotallovestments | 36573]  34901]  _ Inswanoe Company
17 | ‘Ghareholder's Account
ay - Total funds 30,006 27,863 Not appiicable being General
b} Total Investments 30,006 27,363 Insurance Company
18 | Paid Up Equity Capital 92,600 82,500 89,800 79,050 66,900
19 | Net Worth 25,584 23,300 20,868 16,968 14,210
20 | Total Assets 82,084 72,596 64,512 50,887 42 420
21 | ield on total investments 7.90% 8.20% 860% |  940% |  8.80%
22 | Earnings Per Share (Rs.)* 0.25 (0.04) {0.82) (1.28) (2.29)
23 | Book value per Share (Rs.) 10 10 L 10 10
24 | Total Dividend - - - - :
25 | Dividend Per share (Rs.) B - - - -

A sum of Rs. 10,777 13 Lakhs which is in the excess of axpenses of management over the allowable fimit has
been transferre¢ from Revenue Account to Profif and Loss account in accordance with the circular no.
IRDAIReg./12/124/2016.

This represents Basic Earnings per share and Diluted garning per share. Waighted average of number of equity
shares i.e 9,280 Lakhs (Previous year 9,138 Lakhs) is used in computing Earnings per share
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29. Accounting Ratios™ is provided as under:

31

Performance Ratios 2017-18 2018417 201516 2014-15 2013-14 |
Gross Direct Premium Growth Rale 27% 25% 28% 21% 49%
{Overali)

Gross Direct Premium Growth Rate 26% 28%, 28% 21% 48%
{(Health)

Gross Direct Premium Growth Rate 274% 556% 24% -b5% -
{Personal Accident)

Gross Diregct Premium to Nel Worth 2.95times 255 times | 2.28times | 2.20tmes | 2.17 times
Ratio

Growth Raie of Net Worlh 10% 12% 23% 19% 21%
Net Retention Ratio {Qverall) 78% 95% 95% 95% 95%
Met Retention Ratio (Heaalth) 78% 85% 95% 95% 95%
Net Retention Ratio (Personal Accident) 70% 82% 60% 69% 78%
Net Commission Ratio (Overall) 4% 10% 10% 0% 9%
Net Coramission Ratic (Health} 4% 10% 10% 9% 9%
Net Commission Ratic (Personal 8% 13% - - 10%
Accident)

Expenses of Management to Gross 50% 54% 57% 66% T4%
Dirget Fremium Ratic

Expiises of Management to Net written 64% 57% 60% 76% 87% |
Pramium Ratio L

Nefincurred ciaims to Net eamed 50% 52% 60% 58% 59%
prernium

Combined Ralio 104% 108% 118% 130% 145%
Tethnical Reserves to Net Premium 0.80times | 0.59times | 0.69times | 0.68times | 0.67 times
Ratia

Undenwriting Balance Ratios {0.05) times | (0.10) times | {0.27) times | (0.33) (0.61)

g g et e e e - | times times
Opéfating Proiit Ratio 0.42% 4% 2% | 28% -56%
Liguid -Assets to Liability Ratio 0.75 times 0.71times | 0.70tmes | 1.83times | 1.76times
Net Earnings Ratio 4% ~1% -15% -26% -45%
Return on Nat Worth Ratio 9% -2% -33% -55% -93%
Reinsurancea Ratio 22% 5% 5% 5% 4%
Avaiiable Solvency margin Ratio to 211 2.01 2.16 2.10 2.13
Required Solvency Margin Ratio
(iimes)"

MPA Ratio NA NA NA NA NA

*Requircad Solvency Margin Ratic (times) is 1.50.

**Caltulated as per IRDAI Master Circular on Preparation of Financial Stateinents 2012,

30. Corporate Social Responsibility

The Comparny is nof required to constitute a CSK Committee as the Company does not fulfill the
Corditions given under Secticn 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

Provision for Free Look period

The provision for Free Look period is Rs. 943 thousand (previous year Rs.1229 thousand), as certified

by the Panel Actuary.
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32. Pending Litigations

33.

The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company primarily by the customers
and proceadings pending with Tax authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and
proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disciosed the contingent
liabiiitties where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of
these proceedings to have a naterial adverse effect on its financial resuits at March 31, 2018, Refer nate
1 for details on contingant iiabilities

Risk Management Architecture

The Board and ather staikeholders of Max Bupa get assurance on risk management processes and its
effectivensss from extemal audit, internal audit, risk managetaent, compliance and fraud investigation
function. The Company’s risk management framework comprises of the following elements:

=  Risk Strategy and Appetite {including Risk Policy framework and Governance structure)

v Strategic Risk Assessment (Business Plan)

Risk Categorization

Risk Registers

Risk Control and Assurance

Risk Reporting

Risk Msanagernent design and effectiveness review

L]

L

Risk:Management roles and responsibilitics:

To improve courdination and eliminate duplication, Max Bupa has adopted “Tirée Line of Defence model.
The model defines clear set of responsibilities for each group of risk and controf professionals.

a) [First Line: Involved in day to day risk management, in accordance with agreed risk policies, appetite
and controls, at the operational level This role is performed by Funclional Heads and Process
OWNers.

) Second Line. Responsible for risk oversight, risk guidance and risk reporting. This role is performead by
Risk Management team, Compliance & Fraud Investigation team,

¢)  Taird Line: Indeperident assurance to the Board and Senior Management of the =ffeciiveness of risk
management processas. This role is performed by Iniernal and External Auditors.

A Risk Management team headed by Chief Risk Officer is in place to suppoit for and challenge on the
completeness and accuracy of risk identification, measurement, management, moniioring and reporting,
and adeqguacy of, and progress against, mitigation plans.

Risk Appetite Statemenis:

To help define the leval of risk that Max Bupa is willing to lake, & set of Risk Appetite Siaiernenis have
been defined which state in both quantitative and qualitative terms the Max Bupa Soard's desirad risk
profile. The statements are reviewed and approved annusliy oy the Board. The risk appetite statemenis
are alignad with risk stralegy and the Business Plan approved by the Board.

Status update against the defined risk appetites are monitored and reported to the Risk Commitize on &
quarterly basis.

Stratagic Risk Assessment:

Max Bupa identifies the need for explicitly considering risk in the strategic and planning process For this
purpose, a strategic risk assessment process has heen documented which will ensure that while
developing business plans and/ or implementing major change initiatives, the business should include a
“challenge phase”, where the business including the risk team consider the impact of planned changes on
the existing and future risk profile and the confrc »nvironment.
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34.

Risk ldentification and Assessiment process:

tMax Bupa has categorized risk into six (6) broad Level 1 categories — Strategic risk, Insurance risk,
financial risk, Operational risk, Regulatory risk and Reputational risk. Each of such 6 categories is further
broken down into 24 Level 2 sub iisk categories. These risk categories ara obzerved throughout the risk
managemeni journey

Company has documented funclional risk registers to identify and assess inherent risks against such risk
calegories. Each identified risk is mappead to existing controls to mitigate such risk. After identification of
existing (As is} controls, functional heads along with their teams assess the risk based on their impact and
likelithood using the laid down parameaters. Remediation actions are identified for control gaps, if any.

A consolidated risk register against the defined risk categories is prepared on a guarterly basis to inctude
key risks for the guarter. A Managament Risk Cormitiae chaired by the CEO and attended by Senior
Leadership Team reviews the risks in their respective domains on a guarterly basis and updates the
consolidated register. CRO along with the Risk Management Team overviews and chalienges the entire
orocess of risk identification and rating.

Risk Reporting:

Status update cn the remedial actions identified against the risks captured in the consolidated risk register
is reported 10 Risk Committee on quarierly basis aiong with the Key Risk Summary and the Organizational
Risk Heat Map,

The gompany has compiled the data for the purpose of disclosure in Nofe No. 33 ffrom its risk
management framework and policias and has been furnishad by the management, which has bean relied
upon by the auditors.

Statement containing namnes, descriptions, occupations of and directorships held by the persons
in charge of management of the business under section?1 (3) of Insurance Act, 1938 (amended by
the Insurance l.aws {(Amendment) Act, 2015)

NMamenf person in-charge Ashish Mehrotra
Designation of persen in-charge Managing Director and Chiaf Executive Officer
Qcceupation of person in-charge Service

Diractorships held by the person In-charge during Max Bupa Health Insurance Company Limited
the year or at March 31, 2018
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35. Comoarative Figures

Previous year figures have been regiouped/reciassmed in the respective schedule and notes, wherever
considered necessary, to conform to current year's classification. The details of changes are as under:

{Rs.’000)
Current Year
Previous Year Statement/Sched
Statement/Schedule Amount ule humber, Line
number, Line ltem & Regrouped ltem & Amount
Description Description Regrouped | Reason for Change
Claim investigation
Schedule 4 charges inadvertently
Operating grouped under Claims
Schedule 2 expenses- Less Reinsurance
Claims Net 400 Legal and 400 ceded in the previous
Less: Re-insurance Professional year shown under
Ceded Charges cerrect heading
Schedule 4- As per Master circular,
Operating items of expenses and
expenses —Others- income in excess of
Sundry Balances 1,412 one per cent of the
Written off total premiums (less
. reipsurance) or Rs. 5
3,715 Schedule 4- fakh whichever is
Schedule 4-Operating Operating higher is required to be
expenses —Others- expenses —Others- 2,303 shown as a separate
Miscellaneous expenses- Board meeting line item.
£Xpenses

As per our report of even date

For Nangia & Co. LLP

Vikas Gupta
Partner fis
Membership No: 076879

Place Noida

~For M P Chitale & Co.
hartered Accountants

Murtuza Vajihi
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Hema Malini Ramakrishnan,

Membership No. 74
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DIN:
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rman'éc Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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